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HARBOR FEDERAL’S 33 LOCATIONS
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"1‘; Harboronline . & _
j¥doooesssecsssteornrooeases y N b’ Palm Clty

' harborfederal.com C
MARTIN COUNTY
For your nearest branch location, call 1-800-226-4375 i ‘

% Denotes Harbor Federal’s corporate headquarters
located in Fort Pierce

MEMBER|

The year 2001 brought enhanced services to
Harbor Federal with continued expansion in our
northern market area. Our Palm Bay West and
Rockledge branch offices opened in Brevard
County this past year. Cocoa Commons, also in
Brevard County, is under construction and is
projected to open in early 2002.
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CorPORATE PROFILE

Harbor Florida Bancshares, Inc., the holding company for
Harbor Federal Savings Bank, is headquartered on the east
coast of Florida, in Fort Pierce. Known as a community-
oriented financial institution, Harbor Federal offers deposit
products and consumer, mortgage and commercial loans
to a population of nearly 1.4 million, in a six-county market
area. At present, Harbor Federal operates 31 full-service
banking offices, one loan production office and a full-service
insurance agency. One new branch location is currently
under construction in Brevard County. Harbor Florida
Financial Services, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Harbor
Federal, offers fixed rate annuity products for sale through
our branch offices. Harbor Federal is one of the largest
independent financial institutions based in the state

of Florida with over $1.7 billion in assets.
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Michael J. Brown, Sr., Edward G. Enns Bruce R. Abernethy, Sr., Richard N. Bird

President, C.E.O. Chairman Vice Chairman
Mayor, City of Fort Pierce Retired, Past Operations Manager, President,
Southern Bell Telephone Bird Realty Group

To Our SHAREHOLDERS FROM THE PRESIDENT

Dear Shareholder:

We are pleased to report another year of record earnings. Diluted earnings per share increased 15.9% to $1.02 cents per share
on net income of $24.1 million for the year ended September 30, 2001. This compares to September 30, 2000 resuits of 88 cents
per share on net income of $21.7 million. The increase in earnings per share was due primarily to the growth in the loan portfolio
and a decrease in the average number of shares outstanding as a result of the stock repurchase plan.

As of September 30, 2001, the Company has a total of 6,786,519 shares held as treasury stock. These shares are in addition
to the shares that were purchased to fund the 1998 Stock Incentive Plan. Steady growth in assets supplemented by our stock
repurchase program are part of our effort to further leverage our high capital base. The ratio of stockholders’ equity to assets at
September 30, 2001 was 12.81% compared to 13.86% at year end 2000.

Dividends declared and paid per share increased to 40 cents per share. This compares to 35 cents per share for the year
ending September 30, 2000, and represents an increase of 14% over the prior year.

Total assets increased to $1.755 billion at September 30, 2001 from $1.583 billion at September 30, 2000. Total loans increased
to $1.402 billion at September 30, 2001 from $1.252 billion at September 30, 2000. Total deposits increased to $1.200 billion at
September 30, 2001 from $1.099 billion on September 30, 2600.

Total loans originated for the year were $555.3 million, representing an increase of $122.7 million over the prior year. The
highest percentage of these loans were to borrowers for the purpose of building or purchasing an owner occupied residence in
our six county market area. We are very pleased with the overall increase in loan originations. Residential loans now comprise
67% of the outstanding loan balances with the remaining 33% representing consumer and commercial loans.

Ratios relating to asset quality remained strong during the year ending September 30, 2001. The ratio of non-performing
assets to total assets declined slightly to .20% from .23% at September 30, 2000. The allowance for loan losses as a percentage of
non-performing loans was 519% at September 30, 2001, as compared with 460% at September 30, 2000.

The growth in assets and liabilities as well as the management of operating expenses contributed to another year of excellent
performance. Return on average assets and return on average equity were 1.44% and 10.89% respectively for the year ending
September 30, 2001. Our efficiency ratio of 45.91% for the year ended September 30, 2001 compares favorably to publicly traded
thrifts and banks of our asset size.

Harbor Federal Savings Bank introduced its Internet driven banking product, Harboronline, in December of 1999. This free
service continues to be well received by our customers, with over 14,000 users enrolled and actively using this product. Harbor
Federal’s use of Internet technology will play a large role in the future enhancements to our products and services.




Directors Emeritus

Alto Adams, Jr.
Richard K. Davis

Frank H. Fee, III Richard B. Hellstrom, P.E. Richard V. Neill, Sr.

Attorney, Fee & Kobelgard, PA. Retired, Past President, Lindahl, Attorney, Neill, Griffin, Jeffries,
Browning, Ferrari & Hellstrom, Inc. Fowler, Tierney & Neill, Chartered

Our branch network continues to expand. Two new branches opened in Brevard County this past year: one office in Palm
Bay and one in Rockledge. Construction is underway for an additional new facility in in Cocoa Beach, which is located in Brevard
County; with a projected opening date of late January or February of 2002. The investment in these new facilities provides the
opportunity to increase market share in both deposits and loans.

Harbor Insurance Agency continues to expand as well. Harbor Insurance Agency acquired another independent, well known
and respected agency, Acker-Hall Insurance Agency, in Indian River County. This new location has allowed Harbor Insurance
Agency to offer its services to another geographical segment of our market area. It is our goal to continue to expand our products
and services offered to all the markets in which we serve.

In October of 2000, a subsidiary of Harbor Federal Savings Bank, known as Harbor Florida Financial Services, began selling
fixed rate annuities. This affords our customers an alternative investment product when traditional banking products do not fit
their needs and objectives. This new venture has added to our bottom line in its first year of operation. Our goal is for a licensed
fixed rate annuity agent to be located in every branch by the end of the next fiscal year.

The combined effort and support of shareholders, customers, officers and staff have contributed to the excellent results for
this past year. [ want to personally thank each of you for your investment as shareholders, for the commitment of our employees
and for the loyalty our customers have given us. All of these
elements combined have made Harbor Federal a success. " a
| encourage your continued support in the future. : wrowih and

s X 4 " *

Sincerely,

customers and employees.”

Michael J. Brown
President and Chief Executive Officer




ASSET
(Dollars in Millions)

Investment Securities T e
847 3% P
Other Assets 855 (3%} -
Cash & Equivalents 353 (36 ——————

Morrsrggw?% e

EARNINGS PER SHARE
(Diluted - in cents)

COMPOSITION

$1.02
$1.00
88¢
80 76¢
.60 57¢
43¢
40 —
.20

FY 97 98 99 00 01

LOAN COMPOSITION
(Dollars in Millions)

Consumer and Other T,
§187 (1%

Land 851 4% ———
Residential Construction

8120 B
Multi-Faraily Residentia) -
R0 —— o
Non-Residential -«
Real Estate 75
5130 (9%)
One-to-Four Family
Residential
$1,018 §1%
NONPERFGRMING ASSETS
TO TOTAL ASSETS
1.00%
.60%
45% — .43%
I .37%
.30%
-24% 239
' 7 .20%
i ¥ el
.15% é % H
i g 3
I A
307 @
I i
3 4 2 3 F 3%
3 4 & 3 F 3
T ¥ 3

FY 97 98 99 00

<@
frrt




Deposit Products

Total deposits increased by 9.2% in 2001, fueled primarily by the growth in personal and
commercial checking accounts. Traditionally, the bank holding a party's personal or
business checking account is considered to be the primary bank for all other banking
relationships. The successful expansion of our core checking accounts over the past
twelve months has provided us opportunities to cross-sell additional banking products
and services. It has also been a significant factor in reducing Harbor Federal’s overall
cost of funds.

Harbor Federal's deposit product line includes a basic, free checking account. This
account has been well received in all our communities. Together with free online
banking, this package, referred to as WorryFREE Checking, offers a nocost convenient
way to bank with Harbor Federal.

Important to our checking account customers is real-time banking. Unlike most other
banks, Harbor Federal does not have a 2:00 PM bank cutoff time. This allows for deposits
made anytime during the day to be credited that same day, even in the drive-throughs at
5:30 on Friday night. Extended drive-through and Saturday hours have also been well
received by individual and business customers.

Harbor Federal has also reintroduced an old favorite, the Holiday Club Account. This
account encourages small and large depositors to put funds aside for specific purposes
such as holidays or vacations. The competitive interest rate, automated transfer and a
combined statement with their checking account, has proven attractive to numerous
customers in just a few short months.

Harbor Federal continues to match the needs of our

HARBOR FEDERAL SAVINGS BANK CONTINUES EXPANSION AND
SoLib BANKING PERFORMANCE THROUGHOUT THE YEAR 2001

Introduced as “An Old Friend Returns...” the
Holiday Club Account has been updated

to today’s electronic standards. Automated
transfers and combined statements make the
account easy to implement into a busy lifestyle.

customers to the best product line and technology
available. Our complete line of deposit products
ranges from checking accounts and [RA certificates
of deposit to high yielding money market accounts.
FDIC insurance and an expanded branch network
provides Harbor Federal Savings Bank
opportunities to not only maintain, but to increase
our customer base.

Our Worry-FREE Checking campaign promoted
the Mariner’s checking account and HarborOnline,
our free, anytime, day-or-night Internet access.

| Freborecnn
BB orurE sarric

.. Because you heve mere impertant things on your mind. e

-7 CHECKING




CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Loan Products
Residential Lending

Harbor Federal continues to be a leader in new loans originated in the communities which we serve. Our residential loan officers have
established relationships with professional builders and realtors in our markets and these alliances have contributed to the largest volume of
residential loans closed in our history. This proactive approach in our market area is designed to assist customers in making the “American
Dream” of home ownership a reality.

The vibrant Florida real estate market has provided many opportunities for mortgage lending. Loans have been originated in all types of
communities, from large platted subdivisions to waterfront and golf course communities, Harbor Federal is a recognized lending authority
among builders and realtors alike. Professionals rely on Harbor Federal's residential lending experts for counseling with all types of residential
lending programs.

Harbor's lending programs include loans for the purchase of a home and construction/permanent financing, as well as “ﬁ“gaft' ’,
FHA and first-time homebuyer programs. Harbor’s participation in bond loan programs and down payment assistance %
programs have provided millions of dollars in loans to low-and <
‘ o e e moderate-income families. FHA, conventional adjustable and
1 daiens toans | Sumetoans fixed rate loans, jumbos loans and construction loans with various
A . terms are also offered. Our BiMor™ mortgage features payments
made bi-weekly to accelerate payoff well before a conventional 30-
year loan, saving the borrower thousands of dollars in interest.
Harbor Federal has also earned the distinction of being a leader in
construction lending. Known for our construction/permanent loans,
we offer borrowers a one-time closing, which saves thousands of dollars on a second
set of closing costs, as well as locking in the interest rate at the time the original loan
documents are signed. This extensive array of mortgage loan programs afford
competitive options to existing and prospective customers.

Harbor Federal’s experienced, qualified lenders have also earned the distinction of
being professional, caring residential loan experts. Each lender strives to meet the
individual needs and wants of
your dreams with a foan specialized to every borrower. Our extensive
your individuat wants and needs. product line, coupled with our
talented residential loan offi-
cers, grant Harbor Federal a
&y, Harboroniiee unique, competitive advantage

.5 W............ R in the communities we serve.

The Official Bank of Your American Dream
campaign plays to Harbor Federal’s strong suit:
mortgage and construction lending. Coupled
with our knowledgeable, experienced loan
officers, our competitive rates have made us

a leading lender in our market areas.




CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Commercial Lending and Commercial Real Estate Lending

million.

business customer,

Harbor Federal offers a full complement of commercial business
and real estate loan products including lines of credit, term loans,
equipment loans, residential builder lines and letters of credit. The
opportunity to establish close working relationships and to assist the Lt
financial needs of companies is a focal component of our business plan. to g
As of September 30, 2001, commercial real estate loans increased by 6% to

$169.4 million and commercial business loans increased by 12% to $31.9

Harbor Federal's commercial loan department played a major role
in financing single-family lot and multi-family developments during this
past fiscal year. Harbor has also been active in providing commercial
real estate construction and permanent mortgages, thereby
assisting in the development and expansion of local companies.

As every business is different, so is its banking needs and business
goals. As a business continues to expand, short- and medium-term
financing becomes increasingly important. Harbor Federal tailors
the loan relationship to meet the unique needs of each and every

N LA
. N

It is a privilege to participate in business growth and provide innovative solutions to match corporate
and individual banking needs. Our experienced staff of relationship-oriented commercial loan officers
will continue to provide sound, flexible and efficient products for our new and existing commercial

BONNLENN, SR B [
POUREVISOMENIWA HEEY s RYOHVIE 3]

I S S — customers.
Online Banking

Harboronline has successfully provided our customers
with the convenience of banking anytime and anywhere,
In fact, it gives new meaning to the old saying “bankers’
hours.” Customers can check their balances, reconcile
their checkbooks, and make loan payments, deposits and
transters wherever they have Internet access. Through
Harboronline, customers can also download account
information to various money management programs
providing an added convenience to many individuals.
Thousands of customers access their accounts, making
well over 100,000 inquiries every month.
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Corrorate OYERVIEW

Online BillPay service is available at a minimal cost for all customers desiring that all-
encompassing banking experience. Secured banking transactions provide the security
and peace of mind required by our technology-oriented customers. The online banking
system is supported by a highly trained staff that provides our customers timely
information and friendly service.

The harborfederal.com home page is a focal point for online visitors to learn more about
Harbor Federal and the communities we serve. This is the first year that the annual report
is available to all viewers online. The site provides information on the various branch
locations, career opportunities at Harbor Federal and current deposit rates. Additional
services accessible online include shareholder and Harbor Insurance information along
with links to other bankingrelated sites. These enhancements to Harboronline have
allowed Harbor Federal to once again deliver exceptional service to all its customers.

Harbor Insurance Agency

= The 2000-2001 fiscal year marked Harbor Insurance Agency’s first
H full year of operations. This new venture has proven to be
J successful for the customer, the agency and the bank as a broader
range of products and services are available to both bank

customers and insurance agency customers.
Growth in revenues can be attributed in part to increased referrals
from bank employees and officers. The agency and Harbor Federal

W work closely together to assist each customer in meeting his or her
financial and insurance goals.

Harbor [nsurance Agency further expanded in February 2001 through the acquisition
of a well-respected, independent insurance agency in Indian River County. This has
enabled Harbor Insurance Agency to service more customers within our market
area.

Harbor Insurance Agency is a full-service, independent insurance agency offering a
complete line of insurance products and services including: sost give ue o el g

(561) 361-6040%"

* Homeowner's e Life ¢ Business Liability
s Automobile * Recreational Vehicles * Worker's Compensation Serving Your Personal und Business  harboria.com
¢ Flood ¢ Business Property Insurance Needs Since 1901

Harbor Insurance Agency represerits a number of highly rated and well-respected
insurance companies such as: CNA, Hanover, Old Dominion, Zurich, Progressive and
Hartford.

Harbor Insurance works hard to provide the best possible insurance protection at the best possible rates to customers within our markets.
One of our long-range goals is continued expansion so that we may serve all the geographic markets of Harbor Federal Savings Bank.

10




CorPORATE OVERVIEW

Harbor Florida Financial Services, Inc. (HFFS)

! Harbor Federal Savings Bank introduced a new subsidiary, Harbor Florida
giARBQR PLORIDA Financial Services, Inc. (HFFS) in October 2000. We are pleased to announce

that our inaugural year exceeded expectations.

' S22 1t has always been Harbor's goal to provide innovative, comprehensive and
competitive financial product offermgs to meet the changmg needs of our customers. Harbor Florida Financial Services partnered with PFIC.
Corporation, a third party provider, to offer fixed rate annuities as an alternative and to compliment our traditional banking product line. HFFS
representatives conduct financial profiles to better understand the investor’s objectives. Then a suitable recommendation is made to help the
customer achieve their investment objectives.

Presently, we represent two insurance companies through PFIC.: American General and Lincoln Financial Group. Both provide safe, high-
yielding investment vehicles. These alternative investment products have been well-received by our customers. The introduction of fixed rate
annuities through two major insurance companies has significantly contributed to the noninterest income of the bank.

Insurance Providers

American General Annuity Insurance Company is one of America’s 50 largest insurance companies. As a leading provider of tax-deferred
annuities, American General has helped hundreds of thousands of individuals accomplish their financial goals and achieve security for more
than 50 years.

Lincoln Financial Group was founded in 1905 and is now the eighth largest life insurer in the United States. Lincoln is an 83 billion-dollar
company and currently holds two million annuity policies.

HFFS: Past Performance and Future Goals

Currently, we have licensed agents in about 50% of our retail
branch locations. Internal marketing and referral efforts have
contributed to our success in identifying and assisting new
and potential clients. Statement stuffers and in-branch
marketing are used to create awareness and interest in the
program.

Our goal for the coming year includes having a minimum of
one licensed agent in every branch location. New products
and companies will continue to be evaluated to ensure that we
are providing the best possible products to our customets.
Helping customers choose the proper investment, providing
suitable quality products and continually training our agents
will allow us to meet the very aggressive sales goals set for the
coming year.

11
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Michael J. Brown, Sr., President, C.E.O. Don W, Bebber, Senior Vice President, Michael J. Brown, Jr., Senior Vice President,
Secretary Regional Presidents
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Commercial Leading Vice President Martin County
David C. Hankle, Senior Vice President Todd A. Bevan, Treasurer, Vice President William R. Kirkman,
Tammy Allan, Vice President H. Michael Callaban, Controller, Volusia County
Vice President Paul LaFleur,

René Arteaga, Vice President
Frank J. Ditmyer, Vice President
Charles Giel, Vice President

Carol M. Hughes, Vice President
Donald M. Hughes, Vice President
Barbara K. Middleton, Vice President
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Michael L. Adams
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Michael D. Minton
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J. Hal Roberts, Senior Vice President
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Robin M. Moorman, Vice President
Aileen M. Pruitt, Vice President
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Albert L. Fort, Senior Vice President
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Annetta B. Smith, Vice President
Theresa J. Traynor, Vice President
Amy M. Williams, Vice President
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Karen E. Bowers, Vice President
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Sharon L. Dondiego, Vice President
Gina W, Reid, Vice President
Leslie Wright, Vice President
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

Selected Consolidated Financial Condition Data

Total assets

Loans (net) (1)

Federal funds sold
Investment securities (2)
Mortgage-backed securities
Real estate owned
Deposits

Short-term borrowings
Long-term debt
Stockholders’ equity

ey

September 30,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

(In thousands)
$1,755,108 $1,582,695 $1,462,550 $1,350,583 $1,131,024
1,401,873 1,251,669 1,070,335 944,700 834,270
— —_ — 20,000 250
46,614 85,967 87,076 101,505 52,553
153,714 165,059 196,971 201,049 176,854
917 871 911 2,534 2,314
1,200,092 1,098,537 977,595 918,126 911,576
10,043 18,000 — — 30,100
285,544 220,091 225,000 145,000 70,375
224,835 219,384 235,922 263,719 96,802

Excludes loans held for sale of $5,373,000, $2,548,000, $1,747,000, $714,000, and $141,000, as of September 30, 2001,
2000, 1999, 1998, and 1997, respectively. )

Includes investments available for sale of $46.4 million, $85.8 million, $76.1 million, $71.5 million, and $47.6 million,
in 2001, 2000, 1999, 1998, and 1997, respectively.

@

Selected Consolidated Operating Data
Years Ended September 30,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(In thousands except per share data)

Interest income $ 126,050 $112,322 $103,884 $ 95,158 $ 84,814
Interest expense 65,234 55,215 48,840 46,658 45,159
Net interest income 60,816 57,107 55,044 48,500 39,655
Provision for loan losses 798 847 816 297 782
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 60,018 56,260 54,228 48,203 38,873
Other income:

Other fees and service charges 8,450 6,812 5,505 4,074 3,319

Other 3,880 1,039 671 1,864 905
Total other income 12,330 7,851 6,176 5,938 4,224
Other expenses:

Compensation and benefits 18,652 16,503 15,413 14,282 11,931

Occupancy 4,858 4,185 3,422 3,365 3,046

SAIF deposit insurance premium 216 299 552 572 785

Other 8,888 7,657 6,644 6,313 5,397
Total other expenses 32,614 28,644 26,031 24,532 21,159
Income before income taxes 39,734 35,467 34,373 29,609 21,938
Income tax expense 15,626 13,719 13,154 12,243 8,611
Net income $ 24,108 $ 21,748 $ 21,219 $ 17,366 $ 13,327
Net income per share:

Basic ] 1.04 $ .89 $ 7 $ .58 $ 44

Diluted $ 1.02 3 .88 $ .76 $ .57 $ 43

13




SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

Selected Financial Ratios

Perﬁf‘@rmance Ratios:
Return on average assets
Return on average stockholders’ equity
Net interest rate spread
Net yield on average interest-earning assets
Noninterest expense to average assets
Average interest-earnings assets to average

interest-bearing liabilities

Efficiency Ratio

Asset Quality Ratios:
Nonperforming assets to total assets
Allowance for loan losses to total loans

Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming loans

Capital Ratios:
Average stockholders’ equity to average assets

Stockholders’ equity to assets at period end

At or for the years ended September 30,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
1.44% 1.44% 1.49% 1.40% 1.22%
10.89 9.82 8.54 9.34 14.72
3.21 3.34 3.30 3.40 3.36
3.75 3.91 3.99 4.04 3.72
1.95 1.90 1.83 1.98 1.93
113.57 115.34 119.76 116.54 108.33
45.91 44.49 42.84 46.96 48.83
.20 23 .24 37 .43
.96 1.02 1.12 1.25 1.40
519.01 460.19 470.31 483.13 453.11
13.20 14.65 17.45 15.01 8.26
12.81 13.86 16.13 19.53 8.56

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Special Note Regarding Forward-Loocking
Statements

This report contains certain “forward-looking statements.”
Harbor Florida Bancshares, Inc. (the “Company™) desires to
take advantage of the “safe harbor” provisions of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and is
including this statement for the express purpose of availing
itself of the protections of the safe harbor with respect to
all such forward-looking statements. These forward-
looking statements, which are included in Management’s
Discussion and Analysis and elsewhere, describe future

plans or strategies and include the Company’s
expectations of future financial results. The words
“believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “project,” and

similar expressions identify forward-looking statements.
The Company’s ability to predict results or the effect of
future plans or strategies or qualitative or quantitative
changes based on market risk exposure is inherently
uncertain. Factors which could affect actual results
include but are not limited to i) change in general market

interest rates, ii) general economic conditions, iii)
legislative/regulatory changes, iv) monetary and fiscal
policies of the U.S. Treasury and the Federal Reserve, v)
changes in the quality or composition of the Company’s
loan and investment portfolios, vi) demand for loan
products, vii) deposit flows, viii) competition, and ix)
demand for financial services in the Company’s markets.
These factors should be considered in evaluating the
forward-looking statements, and undue reliance should not
be placed on such statements.

General

The Company owns 100% of the common stock of Harbor
Federal Savings Bank (“the Bank™), a federal savings bank
whose deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC). The Bank provides a wide
range of banking and related services and is engaged in the
business of attracting deposits primarily from the
communities it serves and using these and other funds to
originate primarily one-to-four family first mortgage loans.

14




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Company’s results of operations are dependent on net
interest income. Net interest income is a function of the
balances of loans and investments outstanding in any one
period, the yields earned on such loans and investments,
and the interest paid on deposits and borrowed funds that
were outstanding in that same period. The Company’s
noninterest income consists primarily of fees and service
charges, insurance commissions, gains on sale of mortgage
loans, gains on sale of securities, gains on sale of premises
and equipment and, depending on the period, real estate
operations which have either provided income or loss. The
results of operations are also significantly impacted by the
amount of provisions for loan losses which, in turn, is
dependent upon, among other things, the size and makeup
of the loan portfolio, loan quality, and trends. The
noninterest expenses consist primarily of employee
compensation and benefits, occupancy expense and data
processing services. Its results of operations are affected
by general economic and competitive conditions, including
changes in prevailing interest rates and the policies of
regulatory agencies.

Disclosure on Quantitative and Qualitative
Market Risk and Asset and Liability Management

The Company attempts to manage its assets and liabilities
in a manner that stabilizes net interest income and net
economic value under a broad range of interest rate
environments. This is accomplished by matching maturity
and repricing periods on loans and investments to maturity
and repricing periods on deposits and borrowings.

The matching of assets and liabilities may be analyzed by
determining the extent to which such assets and liabilities
are interest rate sensitive. An asset or liability is
considered to be interest rate sensitive within a specific
time period if it matures or reprices within that time period.
Interest rate sensitivity analysis, also known as “gap”
analysis, attempts to measure the difference between the
amount of interest-earning assets expected to mature or
reprice within a specific time period compared to the
amount of interest-bearing liabilities expected to mature or
reprice within that time period. An interest rate sensitive
“gap” is considered positive when the amount of interest
rate sensitive assets exceeds the amount of interest rate

sensitive liabilities maturing or repricing within a specified
time period. A “gap” is considered negative when the
amount of interest rate sensitive liabilities exceeds the
amount of interest rate sensitive assets that mature or
reprice within a specified time period. Interest rate
sensitivity analysis is based on numerous assumptions,
such as estimates for paying loans off prior to maturity.
Estimates are revised annually to reflect the anticipated
interest rate environment.

Generally, an institution with a positive interest rate
sensitivity “gap” can expect net interest income to increase
during periods of rising interest rates and decline during
periods of falling interest rates. Likewise, an institution
with a negative “gap” can expect an increase in net interest
income during periods of falling interest rates and a
decrease in net interest income during periods of rising
interest rates. At September 30, 2001, the Company’s
cumulative one-year interest rate sensitivity “gap” was
negative 7.04%

The Board of Directors has established an Asset/Liability
Committee, which consists of the Company’s president and
other senior officers. The Committee meets on a monthly
basis to review loan and deposit pricing and production
volumes, interest rate risk analysis, liquidity and borrowing
needs, and a variety of other asset and liability
management topics.

The Company currently utilizes the following strategies to
reduce interest rate risk: (a) the Company seeks to
originate and hold in portiolio adjustable rate loans which
have annual interest rate adjustments; (b) the Company
sells a portion of newly originated fixed rate residential
mortgage loans; (c) the Company seeks to lengthen the
maturities of deposits when deemed cost effective through
the pricing and promotion of certificates of deposits; (d)
the Company seeks to attract low cost checking and
transaction accounts which tend to be less interest rate
sensitive when interest rates rise; and (e) the Company has
utilized long term Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB™)
advances to fund the origination of fixed rate loans. The
Company also maintains a high level of liquid assets
consisting of shorter-term investments, which are expected
to increase in yield as interest rates rise.
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Interest Rate Sensitivity

The table below provides information about the Company’s financial instruments that are sensitive to changes in interest
rates as of September 30, 2001. For borrowings, the table presents principal cash flows by expected maturity dates.

More than
Within Four to More than three years
three twelve one year to to five Over five
months months three years years years Total

(Dollars in thousands)
Interest-earning assets (1):
Mortgage loans (2)

Fixed rate $ 54943 3% 164,829 $ 295,886 $ 172,699 $ 229,118 $ 917475

Adjustable rate 51,138 110,231 98,350 65,332 11,583 336,634
Other loans (2):

Fixed rate 17,551 52,654 35,322 4,998 827 111,352

Adjustable rate 47,570 5,468 352 220 1,592 55,202
Mortgage-backed securities:

Fixed rate (3) 10,488 29,941 54,533 29,726 22,537 147,225

Adjustable rate 708 5,781 — — — 6,489
Investment securities

and other assets 66,685 10,175 31,274 — 200 108,334

Total $ 249,083 $ 379,079 $ 515,717 $ 272,975 $ 265,857 $1,682,711

Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits (4):

NOW accounts $ 8034 $ 24103 $ 30,851 $ 11,106 $ 6,248 $ 80,342

Passbook accounts 14,477 43,432 32,429 5,189 989 96,516 1
Money market accounts 25,691 77,072 24,663 987 41 128,454
Certificates of deposit 182,856 366,074 196,210 10,832 755 756,727
Borrowings (5) — 10,043 47,000 18,000 220,544 295,587
Total $ 231,068 $ 520,724 $ 331,153 $ 46,114 $ 228577 $1,357,626

Excess (deficiency) of interest
earning assets over
interest-bearing liabilities $ 18,025 $(141,645) $ 184,564 % 226,861 $ 37,280 $ 325,085

Cumulative excess (deficiency)
of interest-earning assets
over interest-bearing liabilities$ 18,025  $(123,620) $ 60,944 § 287,805 $ 325,085

Cumulative excess (deficiency)
of interest-earning assets
over interest-bearing liabilities
as a percent of total assets 1.03% (7.04)% 3.47% 16.40% 18.52%

(1) Adjustable and floating rate assets are included in the period in which interest rates are next scheduled to adjust rather than in the period
in, which they are due, and fixed rate assets are included in the periods in which they are scheduled to be repaid based on scheduled
amortization, in each case adjusted to reflect estimated prepayments. Estimated prepayment statistics were obtained from averaged
projections from various primary securities dealers. For fixed rate mortgages and mortgage-backed securities, annual prepayment rates from
18 to 45%, based on the coupon rate, were used.

(2) Balances have been reduced for loans in process and deferred loan fees and discounts that aggregated to $89.6 million at September 30, 2001.
Nonperforming loans aggregating $2.6 million were included in the within three month repricing period.

(3) Fixed rate mortgage-backed securities include amortizing securities that balloon 5 years and 7 years from original issue date. Bailoon
securities amounted to $30.5 million at September 30, 2001.

(4) The Company's negotiable order of withdrawal (*"NOW") accounts, passbook savings accounts and money market deposit accounts are
generally subject to immediate withdrawal. However, management considers a certain portion of these accounts to be core deposits having
significantly longer effective maturities based on the Company’s retention of such deposit accounts in changing interest rate environments.
NOW accounts, passbook savings accounts and money market deposit accounts are assumed to be withdrawn at annual rates of 40%, 60%
and 80%, respectively, of the declining balance of such accounts during the period shown. Management believes the rates are indicative of
expected withdrawal rates in a rising interest rate environment. If all of the Company’s NOW accounts, passbook savings accounts, and
money market deposit accounts had been assumed to be subject to repricing within one year, the cumulative one-year deficiency of interest-
earning assets to interest-bearing liabilities would have been $235.1 million, or negative 13.40% of total assets.
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(5) Of the $295.6 million of borrowings, $220 million are callable on specified dates during the years 2003, 2005 and 2006 by the Federal Home Loan
Bank (FHLB). Based on the interest rate environment that existed at September 30, 2001, and assuming this interest rate environment remains
constant through 2006, management believes that it is unlikely the borrowings would be called by the FHLB. Management has therefore assumed
that these borrowings will continue to their stated maturity. These borrowings are included in the over five years repricing category.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of analysis
presented in the foregoing table. For example, although certain
assets and liabilities may have similar maturities or periods to
repricing, they may react in different degrees to changes in market
interest rates. Also, the interest rates on certain types of assets
and liabilities may fluctuate in advance of changes in market
interest rates, while interest rates on other types may lag behind
changes in market rates. Additionally, certain assets, such as
adjustable rate mortgage loans, have features that restrict changes
in interest rates on a short-term basis and over the life of the asset.
Further, in the event of a change in interest rates, prepayment and
early withdrawal levels would likely deviate significantly from
those assumed in calculating the table. Finally, the ability of many
borrowers to service their debt may decrease in the event of an
interest rate increase.

The Company does not purchase, sell or enter into derivative
financial instruments or derivative commodity instruments as
defined by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No.
133, “Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging
Activities” (“Statement 133").

Interest Rate Risk

The Company uses a computer model to quantify its interest rate
risk. The computer model measures the sensitivity of asset and
liability fair values to hypothetical changes in interest rates.
Interest rate sensitive instruments used in the computer model
include: loans, mortgage-backed securities, investment securities,
federal funds sold, interest-bearing deposits in other banks, FHLB
stock, deposits, advances from the FHLB, and off-balance sheet
loan servicing rights and commitments. The model calculates net
present values for assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet contracts
using a discounted cash flow methodology. These amounts are
netted together to determine net portfolio value. Management
estimates discount rates by using current market yields on similar
financial instruments. Discount rates are adjusted upward and
downward by 100 basis points and 200 basis points to reflect a
hypothetical parallel shift in interest rates. In addition,
management estimates loan prepayment rates, deposit decay
rates, and values of certain assets that could correspond with such
hypothetical parallel shifts in interest rates.

Presented below is an analysis of the Company’s interest rate risk
at September 30, 2001 as calculated utilizing the Company’s
computer model. The table presents net portfolio value, dollar
and percent changes in net portfolio value, for instantaneous and
parallel shifts in the yield curve in 100 basis point increments up
and down.

The following analysis is based on numerous assumptions that
management believes to be reasonable. These assumptions relate
to interest rates, loan prepayment rates, deposit decay rates, and

market values of certain assets under various interest rate
scenarios. It was also assumed that delinquency rates would not
change as a result of changes in interest rates although there can
be no assurance that this will be the case. Even if interest rates
change in the designated increments, there can be no assurance
that the Company's assets and liabilities would perform as
indicated in the table below. Since there is no quoted market for
most of the Company’s financial instruments, management has no
basis to determine that values presented would be indicative of
the amounts realized in an actual negotiated sale. Furthermore,
management has not considered the tax effect or transaction costs
that may be associated with disposal of the Company’s assets and
liabilities. A change in US. Treasury rates in the indicated
amounts, accompanied by a change in the slope or shape of the
yield curve, could result in significantly different net portfolio
values than shown below.

Change Net portfolio Dollar
in rates value amount change Percent
(Dollars in thousands)
+200 B.P. $ 201,244 $ (62,117) (23.6)%
+100 B.P. $ 238,008 $ (25,352) 9.6)%
0B.P. $ 263,361 $ 0 0%
-100 B.P. $ 264,867 $ 1,506 0.6 %
-200 B.P. $ 257,690 $ (5,671) (2.2)%
Equity Pricing Risk

The Company maintains a portfolio of available for sale equity
securities, which subjects the Company to equity pricing risks. The
change in fair values of equity securities represents instantaneous
changes in all prices for available for sale equity securities. Equity
pricing risk is managed through company diversification and
individual position limits established in the investment policy. At
September 30, 2001 the company did not maintain an equity trading
portfolio. The following are changes in the fair value of the Company’s
available for sale securities at September 30, 2001 based on
percentage changes in fair value.

Percent change Fair value of available-

in fair value for-sale securities
(Dollars in thousands)
20% $5,958
10% $5,462
0% $4,965
(10)% $4,469
20)% $3972

Actual future price appreciation or depreciation may be different
from the changes identified in the table above.
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Analysis of Net Interest Income

The Company’s earnings historically depended primarily
upon its net interest income, which is the difference
between interest income earned on its loans and
investments (“interest-earning assets™) and interest paid
on its deposits and any borrowed funds (“interest-bearing
liabilities”). Net interest income is affected by (i) the
difference between rates of interest earned on the
Company’s interest-earning assets and rates paid on its

The following tables present an analysis of certain aspects
of the Company’s operations during the periods indicated.
The first table presents the average balances of, and the
interest and dividends earned or paid on, each major class
of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities.
No tax equivalent adjustments were made. Average
balances represent daily average balances. The yields and
costs include fees that are considered adjustments to

interest-bearing liabilities (“interest rate spread”) and (ii)  yields.
the relative amounts of its interest-earning assets and

interest-bearing liabilities.

Years ended September 30,
2001 2000 1999

Average Inmterest & Yield/ Average Interest& Yield/ Average Interest& Yield/
balance dividends rate balance dividends rate balance dividends rate
(Dollars in thousands)
Assets:
Interest-earning assets (1):
Federal funds sold S — 8 —_ —% $ — % — —% $ 5699 $ 299 5.25%
Interest-bearing deposits 49,878 2,221 445 15,416 844 5.47 45,317 2,198  4.85
Investment securities 78,236 4,611 5.89 97,490 5,849 6.00 102,585 6,107 5.95
Mortgage-backed securities 149,708 9,517 6.36 180,460 11,537 6.39 207,544 13,173 6.35 s
Mortgage loans 1,188,592 95,353 8.02 1,035,615 81,928 791 902,964 71,600 7.93
Other loans 154,410 14,348 9.29 130,580 12,164 9.32 114,359 10,507 9.19
Total interest-earning assets 1,620,824 126,050 7.78 1,459,561 112,322 7.70 1,378,468 103,884 7.54
Total noninterest-earning assets 56,737 52,207 45,038
Total assets 1,677,561 1,511,768 1,423,506
Liabilities and Stochholders’ Equity:
Interest-bearing liabilities
Deposits:
Transaction accounts $299,987 $ 4,577 1.53% $ 221,001 $ 2466  1.12% $ 180662 $ 1,781  0.99%
Passbook savings 92,921 1,264 1.36 106,465 2,002 1.88 103,272 1,993 1.93
Official checks 10,249 — 00 9,161 — .00 8,693 — .00
Certificate savings 757,611 44,563 5.88 695,866 37,546 5.40 660,584 33,945 5.14
Total deposits 1,160,768 50,404 4.34 1,032,493 42,014 407 953,211 37,719 3.96
FHLB advances 266,340 14,817 5.56 232917 13,195 5.67 197,767 11,117 5.62
Other borrowings 69 13 18.84 16 6 3515 — 4 .00
Total interest-bearing liabilities 1,427,177 65,234 4.57 1,265,426 55,215 4.36 1,150,978 48,840 4.24
Noninterest-bearing liabilities 29,022 24,922 24,058
Total liabilities 1,456,199 1,290,348 1,175,036
Stockholders’ equity 221,362 221,420 248,470
Total liabilities and
stockholders’ equity 1,677,561 1,511,768 1,423,506
Net interest income/ (2) - - -
interest rate spread $60,816 3.21% $57,107 3.34% $ 55,044 3.30%
Net interest-earning assets/ - -
net interest margin (3) $193,647 3.75% $ 194,135 3.91% $ 227,490 3.99%
Interest-earning assets - - -
to interest-bearing liabilities 113.57% 115.34% 119.76%

(1) Average balances and rates include nonaccruing loans.

(2) Interest rate spread represents the difference between weighted average interest rates earned on interest-earning assets and the
weighted average interest rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities.

(3) Net interest margin represents net interest income as a percentage of average interest-earning assets.
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Rate/Yolume Analysis

The relationship between the volume and rates of the
Company’s interest-earning assets and interest-bearing
liabilities influences the Company’s net interest income.
The following table reflects the sensitivity of the
Company’s interest income and interest expense to
changes in volume and in prevailing interest rates. For
each category of interest-earning assets and interest-

bearing liabilities, information is provided on effects
attributable to: (1) changes in volume (changes in volume
multiplied by old rate); (2) changes in rate (changes in rate
multiplied by old volume); and (3) net change. Changes
attributable to the combined impact of volume and rates
have been allocated proportionately to changes due to
volume and changes due to rate.

Years Ended September 30,
Increase (Decrease)

2001 vs. 2000

2000 vs. 1999 1999 vs. 1998

Volume Rate Net Volume Rate Net Volume Rate Net
(In thousands)
Interest income:
Interest-bearing deposits 81,532 8§ (155) $ 1,377 $(1,935) $ 282 $(1,653) $§ 118 $ (302) $ (184)
Investment securities 1,007) 23D) (1,238 (288) 30 (258) 1,163 (O 1,162
Mortgage-backed securities (1,955) ®5 (2,020) (1,731) 95 (1,636) 2,181 (309 1,872
Mortgage loans 12,187 1,238 13,425 10,499 (171) 10,328 8,954 (3,683) 5,271
Nonmortgage loans:
Commercial loans 584 a3n 447 446 81 527 520 (74 446
Consumer loans 1,629 108 1,737 1,075 55 1,130 320 (161) 159
Total interest income 12,970 758 13,728 8,066 372 8,438 13,256  (4,530) 8,726
Interest expense:
Deposits:
Transaction accounts $1,181 § 930 $2111 $ 437 $ 248 $ 68 $ 213 $ (326) $§ (113)
Passbook savings “21) 317 @38) 123 (114) 9 299 20 319
Certificate savings 3,632 3,385 7,017 1,904 1,697 3,601 (516) (2,190) (2,706)
Total deposits 4,392 3,998 8,390 2,464 1,831 4,295 4) (2,496) (2,500)
FHLB advances 1,786 (649 1,622 1,911 167 2,078 4,736 (38) 4,698
Other borrowings 7 — 7 2 — 2 (16) — (16)
Total interest expense 6,185 3,834 10,019 4,377 1,998 6,375 4,716 (2,539) 2,182
Net interest income $6,785 $(3,076) $ 3,709 $ 3,689 $(1,626) $ 2,063 $ 8,540 $(1,996) $ 6,544

Results of Operations

Year Ended September 30, 2001 Compared to Year
Ended September 30, 2000

General

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended September
30, 2001, increased 15.9% to $1.02 per share on net income
of $24.1 million, compared to 88 cents per share on net
income of $21.7 million for the same period last year. This
increase was due primarily to the growth in the loan
portfolio and a decrease in the average number of shares
outstanding as a result of the stock repurchase plan. Net
interest income increased 6.5% to $60.8 million for the year
ended September 30, 2001, compared to $57.1 million for
the year ended September 30, 2000. This increase was due
to an increase in interest income of $13.7 million partially

offset by an increase in interest expense of $10.0 million.
Other income increased to $12.3 million for the year ended
September 30, 2001 from $7.9 million for the year ended
September 30, 2000. Other expenses increased to $32.6
million for the year ended September 30, 2001 from $28.7
million for the year ended September 30, 2000.

Interest Income

Total interest income increased to $126.1 million for the
year ended September 30, 2001 from $112.3 million for the
year ended September 30, 2000 as a result of an increase in
average interest-earning assets to $1.6 billion for the year
ended September 30, 2001 from $1.5 billion for the year
ended September 30, 2000. The average rate earned on
interest-earning assets increased to 7.78% for the year
ended September 30, 2001 from 7.70% for the year ended
September 30, 2000, an increase of 8 basis points. Interest

19




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

income on loans increased $15.6 million to $109.7 million
for the year ended September 30, 2001 from $94.1 million
for the year ended September 30, 2000. This increase was a
result of a $176.8 million increase in the average balance to
$1.3 billion in 2001 from $1.2 billion in 2000. The average
yield on loans increased to 8.17% for the year ended
September 30, 2001 from 8.07% for the year ended
September 30, 2000. The increase in the average balance of
total loans was mainly due to significant growth in the
residential and commercial loan portfolios resulting from
increased levels of loan originations. Interest income on
investment securities decreased $1.2 million to $4.6 million
for the year ended September 30, 2001 from $5.8 million for
the year ended September 30, 2000. This decrease was
primarily the result of a $19.3 million decrease in the
average balance to $78.2 million in 2001 from $97.5 million
in 2000. The decrease in the average balance of investment
securities was primarily due to the maturity and call of
FHLB and FNMA Notes. Interest income on mortgage-
backed securities decreased $2.0 million to $9.5 million for
the year ended September 30, 2001 from $11.5 million for
the year ended September 30, 2000. This decrease was
primarily the result of a $30.8 million decrease in the
average balance to $149.7 million in 2001 from $180.5
million in 2000. The decrease in the average balance of
mortgage-backed securities was primarily due to
repayments. Other interest income, mainly consisting of
interest on interest-bearing deposits in other banks,
increased $1.4 million to $2.2 million for the year ended
September 30, 2001 from $844,000 for the year ended
September 30, 2000. This increase was primarily the result
of a $34.5 million increase in the average balance of funds
on deposit at the FHLB to $49.9 million in 2001 from $15.4
million in 2000. The increase in the average balance of
interest-bearing deposits was primarily due to an increase
in overnight funds on deposit at the FHLB.

Interest EFxpense

Total interest expense increased to $65.2 million for the
year ended September 30, 2001 from $55.2 million for the
vear ended September 30, 2000. This increase was due
primarily to an increase in average interest-bearing
liabilities to $1.4 billion for the year ended September 30,
2001 from $1.3 billion for the year ended September 30,
2000. The average interest rate paid on interest-bearing
liabilities was 4.57% for the year ended September 30, 2001
compared to 4.36% for the year ended September 30, 2000,
an increase of 21 basis points. Interest expense on deposits
increased $8.4 million to $50.4 million for the year ended
September 30, 2001 from $42.0 million for the year ended
September 30, 2000. This increase was a result of a $128.3
million increase in the average balance to $1.2 billion in
2001 from $1 billion in 2000 and an increase of 27 basis
points in the average interest rate paid to 4.34% for the

year ended September 30, 2001 from 4.07% for the year
ended September 30, 2000. The average deposit mix
changed to 34.7% and 65.3% of core deposits and
certificates, respectively, for the year ended September 30,
2001 from 32.6% and 67.4%, respectively, for the same
period in 2000. Interest expense on FHLB advances and
other borrowings increased $1.6 million to $14.8 million for
the year ended September 30, 2001 from $13.2 million for
the year ended September 30, 2000. This increase was the
result of an increase of $33.4 million in the average balance
to $266.3 million in 2001 from $232.9 million in 2000
primarily due to proceeds from new long-term fixed rate
advances taken in order to fund the origination of fixed rate
loans and the purchase of mortgage-backed securities.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses was $798,000 for the year
ended September 30, 2001, compared to $847,000 for the
year ended September 30, 2000. The provision for loan
losses for the year ended September 30, 2001 was
principally comprised of a charge of approximately
$424,000 related to an increase in the level of classified
loans, a charge of approximately $264,000 due to overall
loan portfolio growth and a charge of approximately
$110,000 for net chargeoffs. The provision for loan losses
for the year ended September 30, 2000 was principally
comprised of a credit of approximately $99,000 related to a
decrease in the level of classified loans, a charge of
approximately $876,000 due to overall loan portfolio
growth and a charge of approximately $70,000 for net
chargeoffs. The allowance for loan losses was at $13.4
million and $12.7 million for September 30, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. The allowance was .96% and 1.02% of total
loans at September 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively and was
251.9% and 277.9% of classified loans at September 30, 2001
and 2000, respectively. While the Company’s management
uses available information to recognize losses on loans,
future additions to the allowance may be necessary based
on changes in economic conditions.

Other Income

Other income increased by $4.5 million to $12.3 million for
the year ended September 30, 2001 from $7.9 million for the
year ended September 30, 2000. This increase is due
primarily to an increase of $1.6 million in other fees and
service charges, an increase of $1.3 million in insurance
commissions and fees, an increase of $786,000 in gains on
the sale of securities and an increase of $504,000 in gains on
the sale of premises and equipment. Other fees and
service charges, primarily from fees and service charges on
deposit products, were $8.4 million and $6.8 million for the
years ended September 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
This increase was due primarily to the growth in
transaction accounts. Insurance commissions and fees
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were $1.7 million and $418,000 for the years ended
September 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively. This increase
was due primarily to the acquisition of one insurance
agency in 2001 and two insurance agencies in 2000. Gain on
the sale of securities, primarily from the sale of equity
securities, was $889,000 and $103,000 for the years ended
September 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Gains on the
sale of premises and equipment, primarily from the sale of
office buildings and land, were $671,000 and $167,000 for
the years ended September 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Other Expense

Other expense increased by $4.0 million to $32.6 million for
the year ended September 30, 2001 from $28.6 million for
the year ended September 30, 2000. The increase was due
primarily to an increase of $2.1 million in compensation
and benefits, an increase of $673,000 in occupancy expense
and an increase of $823,000 in other expenses. The
increase in compensation and benefits is due primarily to
annual salary increases, additional staff required to
support the growth in loans and deposits and the
acquisition of three insurance agencies. The increase in
occupancy expense is due primarily to an increase in data
processing equipment expense and the acquisition of three
insurance agencies. The increase in other expense is due
primarily to increases resulting from the growth in loans
and deposits and the operation of the insurance agencies.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense increased by $1.9 million to $15.6
million for the year ended September 30, 2001 from $13.7
million for the year ended September 30, 2000, due
primarily to an increase in pretax accounting income. The
effective tax rates were 39.3% and 38.7% for the years
ended September 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Year Ended September 30, 2000 Compared to Year
Ended September 30, 1999

General

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended September
30, 2000, increased 15.8% to 88 cents per share on net
income of $21.7 million, compared to 76 cents per share on
net income of $21.2 million for the same period last year.
This increase was due primarily to the growth in the loan
portfolio, increased non-interest income due to the growth
in transaction accounts partially offset by increased
operating expenses and a decrease in the average number
of shares outstanding as a result of the stock repurchase
plan. Net interest income increased 3.7% to $57.1 million
for the year ended September 30, 2000, compared to $55.0
million for the year ended September 30, 1999. This
increase was due to an increase in interest income of $8.4
million offset by an increase in interest expense of $6.3

million. Other income increased to $7.8 million for the year
ended September 30, 2000 from $6.2 million for the year
ended September 30, 1999. Other expenses increased to
$28.6 million for the year ended September 30, 2000 from
$26.0 million for the year ended September 30, 1999.

Interest Income

Total interest income increased to $112.3 million for the
year ended September 30, 2000 from $103.9 million for the
year ended September 30, 1999 as a result of an increase in
average interest-earning assets to $1.5 billion for the year
ended September 30, 2000 from $1.4 billion for the year
ended September 30, 1999. The average rate earned on
interest-earning assets increased to 7.70% for the year
ended September 30, 2000, from 7.54% for the year ended
September 30, 1999, a increase of 16 basis points. This
increase was due primarily to the change in the mix of
interest-earning assets resulting from the increase in higher
yielding loans and the decrease in lower yielding securities
and interest-bearing deposits in other banks. Interest
income on loans increased $12.0 million to $94.1 million for
the year ended September 30, 2000 from $82.1 million for
the year ended September 30, 1999. This increase was a
result of a $148.9 million increase in the average balance to
$1.2 billion in 2000 from $1 billion in 1999. The average
yield on loans remained constant at 8.07% in 2000 and 1999.
The increase in the average balance of total loans was
mainly due to significant growth in the residential and
commercial loan portfolios resulting from increased levels
of loan originations. Interest income on mortgage-backed
securities decreased $1.7 million to $11.5 million for the
year ended September 30, 2000 from $13.2 million for the
year ended September 30, 1999. This decrease was
primarily the result of a $27.1 million decrease in the
average balance to $180.5 million in 2000 from $207.5
million in 1999. The decrease in the average balance of
mortgage-backed securities was primarily due to
repayments. Other interest income, mainly consisting of
interest on interest-bearing deposits in other banks and
federal funds sold, decreased $1.7 million to $844,000 for
the year ended September 30, 2000 from $2.5 million for the
yvear ended September 30, 1999. This decrease was
primarily the result of a $35.6 million decrease in the
average balance to $15.4 million in 2000 from $51.0 million
in 1999. The decrease in the average balance of interest-
bearing deposits and federal funds sold was primarily due
to the funding of the repurchase of the Company’s common
stock.

Interest Expense

Total interest expense increased to $55.2 million for the
year ended September 30, 2000 from $48.8 million for the
year ended September 30, 1999. This increase was due
primarily to an increase in average interest-bearing
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liabilities to $1.3 billion for the year ended September 30,
2000 from $1.2 billion for the year ended September 30,
1999. The average interest rate paid on interest-bearing
liabilities was 4.36% for the year ended September 30, 2000
compared to 4.24% for the year ended September 30, 1999,
an increase of 12 basis points. Interest expense on deposits
increased $4.3 million to $42.0 million for the year ended
September 30, 2000 from $37.7 million for the year ended
September 30, 1999. This increase was a result of a $79.3
million increase in the average balance to $1 billion in 2000
from $953.2 million in 1999 and an increase of 11 basis
points in the average interest rate paid to 4.07% for the
year ended September 30, 2000 from 3.96% for the year
ended September 30, 1999. The average deposit mix
changed to 32.6% and 67.4% of core deposits and
certificates, respectively, for the year ended September 30,
2000 from 30.7% and 69.3% for the same period in 1999.
Interest expense on FHLB advances and other borrowings
increased $2.1 million to $13.2 million for the year ended
September 30, 2000 from $11.1 million for the year ended
September 30, 1999. This increase was the result of an
increase of $35.1 million in the average balance to $232.9
million in 2000 from $197.8 million in 1999 primarily due to
proceeds from new short-term daily rate advances taken in
order to fund short-term cash operating needs in 2000 and
new long-term fixed rate advances taken in order to fund
the purchase of mortgage-backed securities and
investment securities in 1999.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses was $847,000 for the year
ended September 30, 2000, compared to $816,000 for the
year ended September 30, 1995. The provision for loan
losses for the year ended September 30, 2000 was
principally comprised of a credit of approximately $99,000
related to a decrease in the level of classified loans, a
charge of approximately $876,000 due to overall loan
portfolio growth and a charge of approximately $70,000 for
net chargeoffs. The provision for loan losses for the year
ended September 30, 1999 was principally comprised of a
credit of approximately $511,000 related to a decrease in
the level of classified loans, a charge of approximately
$645,000 due to overall loan portfolio growth and a charge
of approximately $682,000 for net chargeoffs. The
allowance for loan losses was at $12.7 million and $12.0
million for September 30, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The
allowance was 1.02% and 1.12% of total loans at September
30, 2000 and 1999, respectively and was 277.9% and 230.7%
of classified loans at September 30, 2000 and 1999,
respectively. While the Company’s management uses
available information to recognize losses on loans, future
additions to the allowance may be necessary based on
changes in economic conditions.

Other Income

Other income increased by $1.6 million to $7.8 million for
the year ended September 30, 2000 from $6.2 million for the
year ended September 30, 1999. This increase is due
primarily to an increase of $1.3 million in other fees and
service charges, an increase of $247,000 in insurance
commissions and fees and an increase of $165,000 in gain
on the sale of premises and equipment partially offset by a
decrease of $156,000 in income from real estate operations.
Other fees and service charges, primarily from fees and
service charges on deposit products, were $6.8 million and
$5.5 million for the years ended September 30, 2000 and
1999, respectively. This increase was due primarily to the
growth in transaction accounts. Insurance commissjons
and fees were $418,000 and $171,000 for the years ended
September 30, 2000 and 1999, respectively. This increase
was due primarily to the acquisition of two insurance
agencies in 2000. Income from real estate operations was
$249,000 and $405,000 for the years ended September 30,
2000 and 1999, respectively. This decrease was due
primarily to a $211,000 increase in the provision for losses
on real estate owned partially offset by an increase of
$67,000 in gain on sale of real estate owned. The provision
was $25,000 for the year ended September 30, 2000,
compared to a credit of $186,000 for the comparable period
in 1999.

Other Expense

Other expense increased by $2.6 million to $28.6 million for
the year ended September 30, 2000 from $26.0 million for
the year ended September 30, 1999. The increase was due
primarily to an increase of $1.1 million in compensation
and benefits, an increase of $763,000 in occupancy expense
and an increase of $475,000 in other expenses. The
increase in compensation and benefits is due primarily to
annual salary increases and additional staff required to
support the growth in loans and deposits. The increase in
occupancy expense is due primarily to an increase in data
processing equipment expense and expenses resulting
from the addition of three new branch offices during the
last fiscal year. The increase in other expense is due
primarily to an increase of $215,000 in professional fees and
other increases resulting from the growth in loans and
deposits. The increase in professional fees is due primarily
to fees paid to a consulting firm for a net interest margin
and product pricing study.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense increased by $565,000 to $13.7 million
for the year ended September 30, 2000 from $13.2 million
for the year ended September 30, 1999, due primarily to an
increase in pretax accounting income. The effective tax
rates were 38.7% and 38.3% for the years ended September
30, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
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Liguidity and Capital Resources

The Bank's primary sources of funds are deposits,
amortization and prepayment of loans and mortgage-
backed securities, maturities of investment securities and
other short-term investments, and earnings and funds
provided from operations. The Bank will consider
increasing its borrowings from the Federal Home Loan
Bank of Atlanta from time to time as an alternative to
increasing deposit account interest rates. In addition, the
Bank holds unpledged fixed and adjustable rate mortgage-
backed securities totaling $151.3 million at September 30,
2001 that could be used as collateral under repurchase
transactions with securities dealers. Repurchase
transactions serve as secured borrowings and provide a
source of short-term liquidity for the Bank.

Net cash provided by the Company’s operating activities
(i.e. cash items affecting net income) was $28.5 million,
$24.7 million, and $24.6 million for the years ended
September 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Net cash used by the Company’s investing activities (i.e.
cash used primarily from its investment securities,
mortgage-backed securities and loan portfolios) was $104.3
million, $152.2 million, and $115.5 million for the years
ended September 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The
decrease in cash flows in 2001 was due primarily to a
decrease of $30.6 million in the change in net loans, an
increase of $39.3 million in proceeds from maturity of
investment securities partially offset by a $26.1 million
increase in the purchase of mortgage-backed securities.
The increase in cash flows in 2000 was due primarily to an
increase of $56.9 million in the change in net loans, a
decrease of $29.3 million in proceeds from maturity of
investment securities and a decrease of $16.1 million in the
purchase of investment securities partially offset by a $70.1
million decrease in the purchase of mortgage-backed
securities and a decrease of $42.2 million in proceeds from
principal repayments from mortgage-backed securities.

Net cash provided by the Company’s financing activities
(l.e. cash receipts primarily from net increases (decreases)
in deposits and net FHLB advances) was $138.8 million,
$94.2 million, and $90.4 million for the years ended
September 30, 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. The
increase in cash flows in 2001 was due primarily to an
increase of $75.6 million in net proceeds from long-term
borrowings, a decrease of $19.4 million in the purchase of
treasury stock partially offset by a decrease of $31.0 million
in net proceeds from short-term borrowings and a decrease
of $19.4 million in the change in deposits.

The Bank’s liquid assets consist primarily of investment
securities and cash. At September 30, 2001, the Bank had

liquid assets of $139.4 million, with loan commitments of
$63.1 million (consisting of unused lines of credit to
homebuilders and residential and commercial loan
commitments), letters of credit of $4 miilion and unfunded
loans in process of $84.7 million (the latter consisting
primarily of residential loans in process). In addition, the
Bank had certain investments in mortgage-backed
securities aggregating $153.7 million. The Bank intends to
hold such investments in mortgage-backed securities until
maturity. However, such investments may be used as
collateral for borrowing as such need arises.

Harbor Florida Bancshares, Inc. (the holding company) has
cash requirements to pay dividends to shareholders and
the holding company’s expenses. During 2001, the holding
company expended $9.3 million for dividends and
expenses. As of September 30, 2001, the holding company
had $562,000 in cash and $4.9 million in available for sale
securities and is eligible to receive dividends from the Bank
in order to meet future cash requirements. Management
believes that sufficient financial resources exist at the
holding company level to meet its obligations for the next
twelve months. As of September 30, 2001, $80 million was
available for distribution from the Bank to the holding
company without further regulatory approval.

Impact of New Accounting Standards

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 141, “Business Combinations”, (“Statement
141™) and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets,” (“Statement 142”). Statement 141 requires that the
purchase method of accounting be used for all business
combinations initiated after June 30, 2001. Statement 142
will require that goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives no longer be amortized, but instead
tested for impairment at least annually in accordance with
the provisions of Statement 142, Other intangible assets
would continue to be amortized over their estimated useful
lives. In the transition, any impairment losses will be
measured as of the date of adoption and recognized as the
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle in the
first interim period.

The Company is required to adopt the provisions of
Statement 141 immediately and the Company plans to
adopt Statement 142 effective October 1, 2001. As of the
date of adoption, the Company expects to have
unamortized goodwill in the amount of approximately
$3,378,000 that will be subject to the transition provisions
of Statements 141 and 142, Pursuant to Statement 142, the
Company will no longer amortize goodwill. Amortization
expense related to goodwill was approximately $300,000
and $223,000 for the years ended September 30, 2001 and
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2000, respectively. Upon adoption, the Company does not
expect to have a transitional impairment loss.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations” (“Statement 143”), which
addresses financial accounting and reporting for legal
obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-
lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs.
Statement 143 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
June 15, 2002. This Statement is not expected to have a
material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting
for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets” (“Statement 144”)
which supercedes SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets
to Be Disposed Of” (*Statement 121”) and the accounting
and reporting provisions of APB No. 30, “Reporting the
Results of Operation - Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a
Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and
Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions,” for the
disposal of a segment of a business. While Statement 144
retains many of the fundamental provisions of Statement
121, it establishes a single accounting model for long-lived
assets to be disposed of by sale, and resolves certain
implementation issues not previously addressed by
Statement 121. Statement 144 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2001. This Statement is not
expected to have a material impact on the Company’s
financial statements.
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[INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Phillips Point East Tower, Suite 215
777 South Flagier Drive
West Paim Beach, Florida 33401

Board of Directors
Harbor Florida Bancshares, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of Harbor Florida Bancshares, Inc.
and subsidiaries as of September 30, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of earnings,
stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
September 30, 2001. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of Harbor Florida Bancshares, Inc.’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consclidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Harbor Florida Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiaries at September 30, 2001 and 2000, and the results
of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended September 30, 2001 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

KPMG LLP

October 12, 2001
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF [FINANCIAL CONDITION

September 30, 2001 and 2000

2001 2000
(In thousands except share data)
Assets
Cash and amounts due from depository institutions 8 41,134 $ 29,085
Interest-bearing deposits in other banks 51,658 729
Investment securities held to maturity (estimated market value
of $220 and $200 at September 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively) 200 200
Investment securities available for sale at estimated market value 46,414 85,767
Mortgage-backed securities held to maturity (estimated market value
of $156,900 and $161,853 at September 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively) 153,714 165,059
Loans held for sale (estimated market value of $5,512 and $2,548
at September 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively) 5,373 2,548
Loans, net 1,401,873 1,251,669
Accrued interest receivable 9,210 8,387
Real estate owned 917 871
Premises and equipment, net 24,101 21,121
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 15,027 12,500
Goodwill, net 3,378 3,430
Other assets 2,109 1,329

Total assets $ 1,755,108 $ 158269

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity:

Liabilities:
Deposits $ 1,200,092 $ 1,098,537 |
Short-term borrowings 10,643 18,000
Long-term debt 285,544 220,091
Advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance 22,915 20,688
Income taxes payable 4,138 435
Other liabilities 7,541 5,560
Total liabilities 1,530,272 1,363,311

Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock; $.10 par value; authorized 10,000,000 shares;
none issued and outstanding —_— —
Common stock; $.10 par value; authorized 70,000,000 shares;
31,210,415 shares issued and 24,423,896 outstanding at September 30, 2001 and

31,139,509 shares issued and 25,268,518 outstanding at September 30, 2000 3,121 3,114
Paid-in capital 162,537 191,291
Retained earnings 125,384 109,941
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net 1,602 233
Common stock purchased by:

Employee stock ownership plan (ESOP) (11,349) (12,047)

Recognition and retention plan (RRP) (4,547 (5,385)
Treasury stock, at cost, 6,786,519 shares and 5,870,991 shares

at September 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively 81,613) (67,763)

Total stockholders’ equity 224,835 219,384
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 1,755,108 $ 1,582,695

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF [EARNINGS

Years ended September 2001, 2000, and 1999
2001 2000 1999

(In thousands except per share data)
Interest income:

Loans $ 109,761 $ 94,092 $ 82,107
Investment securities 4,611 5,849 6,107
Mortgage-backed securities 9,517 11,537 13,173
Other 2,221 844 2,497
Total interest income 126,050 112,322 103,884
Interest expense:
Deposits 50,404 42,014 37,719
Other 14,830 13,201 11,121
Total interest expense 65,234 55,215 48,840
Net interest income 60,816 57,107 55,044
Provision for loan losses 798 847 816
Net interest income after provision for
loan losses 60,018 56,260 54,228
QOther income:
Other fees and service charges 8,450 6,812 5,505
Insurance commissions and fees 1,685 418 171
Income from real estate operations 294 249 405
Gain on sale of mortgage loans 321 66 57
Gain on sale of securities 889 103 —_
Gain on sale of premises and equipment 671 167 2
Other ' 20 36 36
Total other income 12,330 7,851 6,176
Other expenses:
Compensation and employee benefits 18,652 16,503 15,413
Occupancy 4,858 4,185 3,422
Data processing services 2,124 1,764 1,490
Advertising and promotion 1,014 1,049 1,038
Other 5,966 5,143 4,668
Total other expense 32,614 28,644 26,031
Income before income taxes 39,734 35,467 34,373
Income tax expense 15,626 13,719 13,154
Net income $ 24,108 $ 21,748 $ 21,219

Net income per share:
Basic $ 1.04 $ .89 $ rivd
Diluted $ 1.02 $ .88 $ .76

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

27




CoONSOLIDATED STATEZMENTS OF STOCXHOLDERS FEQUITY
AND COMPRIHENSIVE [NCOME

Years ended September 30, 2001, 2000 and 1959

Comprehensive Common Paid-in Retained
Income stock capital earnings
Balance at September 30, 1998 $ 3,091 $ 189,958 $ 83,355
Comprehensive income
Net income $ 21,219 — —_ 21,219
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax: (729) — — —

Comprehensive income

Stock options exercised

Amortization of award of ESOP and RRP
Dividends paid

Tax benefit of stock plans

Purchase RRP shares

Purchase of treasury shares

Balance at September 30, 1999
Comprehensive income
Net income

Other comprehensive income, net of tax:

Comprehensive income

Stock options exercised

Amortization of award of ESOP and RRP
Dividends paid

Tax benefit of stock plans

s 20480

Treasury Stock issued to purchase insurance agency

Purchase of treasury shares

Balance at September 30, 2000
Comprehensive income
Net income

Other comprehensive income, net of tax:

Comprehensive income

Stock options exercised

Amortization of award of ESOP and RRP
Dividends paid

Tax benefit of stock plans

21,748

303
$ 22051
$ 24,108

1,369

$ 25477

Treasury stock issued tc purchase insurance agency

Purchase of treasury shares
Balance at September 30, 2001

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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$ 3,114

s 321

383 —
515 —
— (8,089)
160 —
$ 191,016 96,485
— 21,748
92 —
102 —
— (8,292)
188 —
(107 —
$ 191,291 109,941
— 24,108
419 —
460 —
— (8,965)
337 —
30 —
$ 192,537 125,084




Accumulated
other
comprehensive
income

(oss)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Common
stock
purchased
by ESOP

Common
stock Treasury
purchased stock
by RRP purchased

Total

(In thousands)

$ 659

(729)

$  (70)

303

$  (13,344)

$ (12,746)

$ (12,047

$ (11,349)

913 —_

(7,171) —

— (35,615)

$ (6,258 $ (35615)

873 —

—_ 1,194
— (33,342)

$  (5,385) $  (67,763)

838 —

— 117
— (13,967)

$ (4547 $ (81,613)
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$ 263,719

21,219
(729)

402
2,026
(8,089)
160
(7,171)
(35,615)

s_235,922

21,748
303

96
1,674
(8,292)
188
1,087
(33,342)

$ 219,384

24,108
1,369

426

1,996
(8,965)

337

147
(13,967)

$ 224,835




CoNsoUDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended September 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999
2001 2000 1999

(in thousands)

Cash provided by operating activities:
Net income $ 24,108 $ 21,748 $ 21,219
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Gain on sale of investment securities available for sale (889 (103) —
Gain on sale of premises and equipment 671 (167) 2
Gain on sale of real estate owned 215) 27D 207)
Provision for loan losses 798 847 816
Provision for (recovery of) losses on real estate owned 4 25 (186)
Depreciation and amortization 2,588 2,358 2,259
ESOP forfeitures transferred to treasury stock avn 23) (44)
Accretion of discount on purchased loans &) 13 (13)
Deferred income tax benefit 3349 (432) (65)
Originations of loans held for sale (31,846) (6,023) (5,408)
Proceeds from sale of loans held for sale 29,021 5,224 8,375
Increase in deferred loan fees and costs 2,164 1,592 2,156
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable {823) (807) 292
Increase in other assets (78%) (322 (263)
Increase (decrease) in income taxes payable 4,640 601 G79
Increase in other liabilities 1,364 468 216
Net cash provided by ¢perating activities 28,506 24,702 24,565
Cash used by investing activities:
Net increase in loans (153,092) (183,741) (126,827)
Purchase of mortgage-backed securities (26,112) — (70,074)
Proceeds from principal repayments
of mortgage-backed securities 37,351 31,789 73,986
Proceeds from maturities and calls
of investment securities held to maturity — 10,715 20,000
Purchase of investment securities held to maturity — — (915)
Proceeds from maturities and calls of investment
securities available for sale 49,999 —_ 20,000
Proceeds from sale of investment securities available for sale 5,330 1,663 —
Purchase of investment securities available for sale {12,764 (10,613) (25,805)
Proceeds from sale of real estate owned 1,826 1,626 1,818
Purchase of premises and equipment (3,238 (2,842) (4,801)
Proceeds from sale of premises and equipment 915 278 118
FHLB stock purchase {2,527y (1,250) (3,038)
Net cash (used by) provided by purchase
of insurance agencies &)} 158 —
Net cash used by investing activities (104,317) (152,217) (115,538)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CasH FLoOws

Years ended September 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999

2001 2000 1999
(In thousands)
Cash provided by financing activities:
Net increase in deposits 101,555 120,942 59,469
Net proceeds from (payment of) short-term borrowings (18,000) 13,000 —
Repayments of long-term borrowings G @& —
Net proceeds from long-term borrowings 75,553 — 80,000
Increase in advance payments by borrowers
for taxes and insurance 2,227 1,737 1,343
Dividends paid (8,965) (8,292) (8,089)
Common stock options exercised 426 96 402
Purchase of common stock by recognition and retention plan — —_ 7,171)
Purchase of treasury stock (13,950) (33,319) (35,571
Net cash provided by financing activities 138,789 94,156 90,383
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 62,978 (33,359 (590)
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 29,814 63,173 63,763
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year S 92,792 $ 29,814 $ 63,173
Supplemental disclosures:
Cash paid for:
Interest $ 64,677 $ 55,032 $ 48,435
Taxes 11,920 13,550 13,799
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Additions to real estate acquired in settlement
of loans through foreclosure 2,635 2,049 1,488
Sale of real estate owned financed by the Company 974 709 1,685
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on securities
available for sale 2,228 496 (L1,187)
Change in deferred taxes related to securities
available for sale (859) (193) 458
Distribution of RRP shares 838 873 913
Tax benefit of stock plans credited to capital 337 188 160
Treasury stock issued to purchase insurance agency 147 1,087 —
Transfer to short-term borrowings from long-term debt 10,043 5,000 —
Note payable issued to purchase insurance agency — 99 —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

31




NoTES TO CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Sepiember 30, 2001, 2000, and 1899 (b) Basis of Presentation
The accompanying consolidated financial state-
(1) Summary of Significant Accounting ments include the accounts of Harbor Florida
Policies Bancshares, Inc., the Bank and the Bank’s whol-
ly owned subsidiaries. In consolidation, all sig-
nificant intercompany accounts and iransac-
(@) Nature of Business, Reorganization tions have been eliminated.
and Offering of Common Stock The consolidated financial statements have
Harbor Florida Banecshares, Inc. (the been prepared in conformity with accounting
“Company” or “Bancshares”) is the holding principles generally accepted (GAAP) in the
company for Harbor Federal Savings Bank (the United States of America. In preparing the con-
“Bank”). The Company owns 100% of the solidated financial statements, management is
Bank’s common stock. Currently, it engages in required to make estimates and assumptions
no other significant activities beyond its own- that affect the reported amounts of assets and
ership of the Bank’s common stock. liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
Consequently, its net income is derived from assets and liabilities as of the date of the state-
the Bank. The Bank provides a wide range of ment of financial condition and revenues and
banking and related services and is engaged in expenses for the period. Actual results could
the business of attracting deposits primarily differ significantly from those estimates.
from the communities it -serves and using Material estimates that are particularly suscep-
these and other funds to originate primarily tible to significant change in the near-term
one-to-four family first mortgage loans. relate to the determination of the allowance for
Prior to March 18, 1998, the Company's prede- loan losses and the valuation of real estate
cessor entity, Harbor Florida Bancorp, Inc. acquired in connection with foreclosures or in
(“Bancorp”), was owned approximately 53.37% satisfaction of loans. In connection with the
by Harbor Financial M.H.C. (“Mutual Holding determination of the allowances for loan losses
Company”) and 46.63% by public sharehold- and real estate owned, management obtains
ers. On March 18, 1998, pursuant to a plan of independent appraisals for significant proper-
conversion and reorganization, and after a ties.
series of transactions: (1) a new entity, As of September 30, 2001 substantially all of the
Bancshares, became the surviving corporate Company’s loans and investment in rea! estate
entity, (2) Bancshares sold the ownership owned are secured by real estate in the counties
interest in Bancorp previously heid by the in which the Company has branch facilities: St.
Mutual Holding Company to the public in a Lucie, Indian River, Brevard, Martin and Volusia
subscription offering (the “Offering”) Counties, Florida. Accordingly, the ultimate
(16,586,752 common shares at $10.00 resulting collectibility of a substantial portion of the
in net cash proceeds after costs and funding Company's loan portfolic and the recovery of a
the ESOP (note 16) of approximately $150 mil- substantial portion of the carrying amount of
lion), (3) previous public shareholders of real estate owned are susceptible to changes in
Bancorp had their shares exchanged into market conditions in the above counties.
14,112,400 common shares of Bancshares Management believes that the allowances for
(exchange ratio of 6.0094 to 1) (the losses on loans and real estate owned are ade-
“Exchange”), and (4) the Mutual Holding quate. While management uses availablie infor-
Company ceased to exist. The total number of mation to recognize losses on loans and real
shares of common stock outstanding following estate owned, future additions to the
the Offering and Exchange was 30,699,152. allowances may be necessary based on changes
The reorganization was accounted for in a in economic conditions, particularly in the
manner similar to a pooling of interests and above counties. In addition, various regulatory
did not result in any significant accounting agencies, as an integrai part of their examina-
adjustments. As a resuit of the reorganization, tion process, periodically review the Company's
the consolidated financial statements for prior allowances for losses on loans and real estate
pericds have been restated to reflect the owned. Such agencies may require the
changes in the par value of common stock Company to recognize additions to the
from $.01 to $.10 per share and in the number allowances based on their judgments about
of authorized shares of common stock from information available to them at the time of
13,000,000 to 70,000,000. their examination.
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Notes TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Loan Origination and Commitment
Fees and Related Costs

Loan fees and certain direct loan origination
costs are deferred, and the net amount is recog-
nized in interest income using the interest
method over the contractual life of the loans.
Commitment fees and costs relating to commit-
ments whose likelthood of exercise is remote are
recognized over the commitment period on a
straight-line basis. If the commitment is subse-
quently exercised during the commitment peri-
od, the remaining unamortized commitment fee
at the time of exercise is recognized over the life
of the loan as an adjustment of yield.

Loan Interest Income

The Company reverses accrued interest related
to loans which are 90 days or more delinquent
or placed on non-accrual status. Such interest is
recorded as income when collected.
Amortization of net deferred loan fees and
accretion of discounts are discontinued for
loans that are 90 days or more delinquent.
Interest income on impaired loans is recognized
on an accrual basis unless designated nonac-
crual as noted above,

Investment and Mortgage Backed
Securities

Bonds, notes, and other debt securities for
which the Company has the positive intent and
ability to hold to maturity are reported at cost,
adjusted for premiums and discounts that are
recognized in interest income using the inter-
est method over the period to maturity.

Available-for-sale securities consist of bonds,
notes, other debt securities and certain equity
securities not classified as trading securities or
held-to-maturity securities. Available-for-sale
securities are reported at estimated market
value and include securities that are being held
for an unspecified period of time, such as those
the Company would consider selling to meet
liquidity needs or as part of the Company’s risk
management program. Unrealized holding
gains and losses, net of tax, on available-for-
sale securities are reported as a component of
comprehensive income in stockholders’ equity
until realized.

Gains and losses on the sale of available-for-
sale securities are determined using the specif-
ic-identification method.

Declines in the fair value of individual held-to-
maturity and available-for-sale securities below
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their cost that are other than temporary
results in write-downs of the individual securi-
ties to their fair value. The related write-downs
are included in earnings as realized losses.

At September 30, 2001 and 2000, the Company
had no commitments to sell investment or
mortgage-backed securities.

Loans

Loans are stated at unpaid principal balances,
less loans in process, the allowance for loan
losses and net deferred loan origination fees
and discounts.

Discounts on mortgage loans are amortized to
interest income using the interest method over
the remaining period to contractual maturity.

The Company follows a consistent procedural
discipline and accounts for loan loss contin-
gencies in accordance with Statement of
Accounting Standards No. 35,
“Accounting for Contingencies” (Statement 5).
The following is a description of how each por-
tion of the allowance for loan losses is deter-
mined.

The Company segregates the loan portfolio for
loan loss purposes into the following broad
segments: commercial real estate; residential
real estate; commercial business; and con-
sumer. The Company provides for a general
allowance for losses inherent in the portfolio
by the above categories, which consists of two
components. (1) General loss percentages are
established based upon historical analyses.
(2) A supplemental portion of the allowance is
established for inherent losses which probably
exist as of the evaluation date even though
they might not have been identified by the
more objective processes used. This is due to
the risk of error and/or inherent imprecision in
the process. This portion of the allowance is
particularly subjective and requires judgments
based on qualitative factors which do not lend
themselves to exact mathematical calculations
such as: trends in delinquencies and nonaccru-
als; migration trends in the portfolio; trends in
volume, terms, and portfolio mix; new credit
products and/or changes in the geographic dis-
tribution of those products; changes in lending
policies and procedures; loan review reports
on the efficacy of the risk identification
process; changes in the outlook for local,
regional and national economic conditions;
concentrations of credit; and peer group com-
parisons.
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Specific allowances are provided in the event
that the specific collateral analysis on each clas-
sified loan indicates that the probable loss upon
liquidation of collateral would be in excess of
the general percentage allocation. The provi-
sion for loan losses is debited or credited in
order to state the allowance for loan losses to
the required level as determined above.

The Company considers a loan to be impaired
when it is probable that the Company will be
unable to collect all amounts due, both princi-
pal and interest, according to the contractual
terms of the loan agreement. When a loan is
impaired, the Company may measure impair-
ment based on (a) the present value of the
expected future cash flows of the impaired loan
discounted at the loan’s original effective inter-
est rate, (b) the observable market price of the
impaired loan, or (c) the fair value of the cocllat-
eral of a collateral-dependent loan. The
Company selects the measurement method on a
loan-by-loan basis, except for collateral-depen-
dent loans for which foreclosure is probable
must be measured at the fair value of the collat-
eral. In a troubled debt restructuring involving
a restructured loan, the Company measures
impairment by discounting the total expected
future cash flows at the loan’s original effective
rate of interest.

(g) Loans Held for Sale

Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale
in the secondary market, comprised of 1-4 fami-
ly residential loans, are carried at the lower of
cost or estimated market value, in the aggre-
gate. Market value is determined by actual com-
mitment or current FNMA rates. Net unrealized
losses are recognized thrcugh a valuation
allowance by charges to income.

(h) Reai Estate Owned

Real estate properties acquired through, or in
lieu of, loan foreclosure are to be sold and are
initially recorded at fair value at the date of fore-
closure establishing a new cost basis. After
foreclosure, management periodically performs
valuations and the real estate is carried at the
lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost
to sell. Revenue and expenses from operations
and changes in the valuation allowance are
included in income from real estate operations.

(i) Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation. Depreciation of
premises and equipment is provided on the
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straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the related assets. Estimated lives are
three to fifty years for buildings and improve-
ments and three to ten years for furniture and
equipment. Leasehold improvements are amor-
tized on the straight-line method over the short-
er of the remaining term of the related leases or
their estimated useful lives.

Maintenance and repairs are charged to
expense as incurred and improvements are cap-
italized. The cost and accumulated deprecia-
tion relating to premises and equipment retired
or otherwise disposed of are eliminated from
the accounts and any resulting gains or losses
are credited or charged to income.

Goodwiil

Goodwill is amortized on a straight-line basis
over its estimated useful life of 15 years. The
Company assesses the recoverability of good-
will by determining whether the amortization
over the remaining life can be recovered
through undiscounted future operating cash
flows of the acquired operation. The assess-
ment of goodwill will be impacted if such esti-
mated future operating cash flows are not
achieved and any impairment will be evaluated
based on projected discounted future operating
cash flows.

(&) Income Taxes

The Company and its subsidiaries file consoli-
dated income tax returns. The Company uses
the asset and liability method to account for
income taxes. Under the asset and liability
method, deferred income taxes are recognized
for the tax consequences of “temporary differ-
ences” by applying enacted statutory tax rates
applicable to future years to differences
between the financial statement carrying
amounts and the tax bases of existing assets
and liabilities. The effect on deferred taxes of a
change in tax rates is recognized in income in
the period that includes the enactment date.

The tax bad debt reserve method previously
available to thrift institutions was repealed for
the Bank effective for the year beginning
October 1, 1996. Consequently, the Bank
changed from the reserve method to the specif-
ic charge-off method to compute its bad debt
deduction for the tax year beginning October 1,
1996.

As a result of this change in accounting method,
the Bank must recapture the portion of its bad
debt reserve (other than the supplemental
reserve) that exceeds its base year reserve (i.e.,
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its tax reserve for the last tax year beginning
before 1988). For financial statement purposes,
the Bank has previously provided deferred taxes
on the amount of the bad debt reserve in excess
of the base year reserve. At the time the Bank
was required to change its method of account-
ing, the total reserve subject to recapture and
the base year reserve was approximately $6.8
million and $14.8 million, respectively.

The recapture amount resulting from the change
in the method of accounting is required to be
taken into taxable income ratably (on a straight-
line basis) over a six-year period. If the Bank
meets certain residential lending requirements,
the commencement of the recapture period may
be delayed until the first taxable year ending
after December 31, 1997. The Bank met such
requirements for the tax years beginning
October 1, 1996 and 1997 and began the recap-
ture in the tax year beginning October 1, 1998.

The Bank's base year reserve must be recap-
tured into taxable income as a result of certain
non-dividend distributions. A distribution is a
non-dividend distribution to the extent that, for
federal income tax purposes, (i) it is in redemp-
tion of shares, (ii) it is pursuant to a liquidation
of the institution, or (iii) in the case of a current
distribution it, together with ail other such dis-
tributions during the taxable year, exceeds the
Bank’s current and post-1951 accumulated earn-
ings and profits. The amount charged against
the Bank’s bad debt reserves in respect to a dis-
tribution, which is includible in gross income,
will equal the amount of such distribution,
increased by the amount of federal income tax
resulting from such inclusion.

Pension Plan

The Company’s policy is to fund pension costs
as they accrue based on normal cost.

(m) Stock-Based Compensation

In October 1995, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock Based Compensation”
(“Statement 123”), This standard allows the use
of either the fair value based method described
in Statement 123 or the intrinsic value based
method prescribed by APB Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.”
(“APB 25") The Company has elected to con-
tinue accounting for stock based compensation
under the APB 25 method and disclose the pro
forma impact of Statement 123.
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(n) Statement of Cash Flows

Cash equivalents include amounts due from
banks and interest-bearing deposits in other
banks. For purposes of cash flows, the
Company considers all highly liquid debt instru-
ments with original maturities when purchased
of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

(o) Net Income Per Share

In February 1997, the FASB issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 128,
“Earnings Per Share” (“Statement 1287).
Statement 128 is effective for financial state-
ments issued for periods ending after December
15, 1997. Statement 128 replaced primary and
fully diluted earnings per share (“EPS™) with
basic and diluted EPS. Basic earnings per share
excludes dilution and is computed by dividing
net income by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding for the period.
Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential
dilution that could occur if options, convertible
securities or warrants to issue common shares
were exercised.

(p) Reclassification

Certain amounts included in the 2000 and 1999
consolidated financial statements have been
reclassified in order to conform to the 2001 pre-
sentation.

(g) Derivative Instruments

The Company does not purchase, sell or enter
into derivative financial instruments or deriva-
tive commodity instruments as defined by
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging  Activities”
(“Statement 133").

(r) New Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 141, “Business
Combinations”, (“Statement 141”) and SFAS No.
142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,”
(“Statement 142"). Statement 141 requires that
the purchase method of accounting be used for
all business combinations initiated after June
30, 2001. Statement 142 will require that good-
will and intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives no longer be amortized, but instead tested
for impairment at least annually in accordance
with the provisions of Statement 142. Other
intangible assets would continue to be amor-
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tized over their estimated useful lives. In the
transition, any impairment losses will be mea-
sured as of the date of adoption and recognized
as the cumulative effect of a change in account-
ing principle in the first interim period.

The Company is required to adopt the provisions
of Statement 141 immediately and the Company
plans toc adopt Statement 142 effective October 1,
2001. As of the date of adoption, the Company
expects to have unamortized goodwill in the
amount of approximately $3,378,000 that will be
subject to the transition provisions of Statements
141 and 142. Pursuant to Statement 142, the
Company will no longer amortize goodwill.
Amortization expense related to goodwill was
approximately $300,000 and $223,000 for the
years ended September 30, 200! and 2000, respec-
tively. Upon adoption, the Company does not
expect to have a transitional impairment loss.

in June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143,
“Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations”
(“Statement 143"), which addresses financial
accounting and reporting for legal obligations
associated with the retirement of tangible long-
lived assets and the associated asset retirement
costs. Statement 143 is effective for fiscal years

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived
Assets” (“Statement 144™) which supercedes
SFAS Ne. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of
Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to
Be Disposed Of” (“Statement 121") and the
accounting and reporting provisions of APB No.
30, “Reporting the Results of Operation —
Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of
a Business, and Exiraordinary, Unusual and
Infrequently Occurring Events and
Transactions,” for the disposal of a segment of a
business. While Statement 144 retains many of
the fundamental provisions of Statement 121, it
establishes a single accounting model for long-
lived assets to be disposed of by sale, and
resolves certain implementation issues not pre-
viously addressed by Statement 121. Statement
144 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2001. This Statement is not
expected to have a material impact on the
Company'’s financial statements.

2) Investment and Morigage-backed Securities

beginning after June 15, 2002. This Statement is The amortized cost and estimated market value of
not expected to have a material impact on the investment and mortgage-backed securities at
Company’s financial statements. September 30, 2001 are as follows:
Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized unrealized unrealized market
cost gains losses value

(in thousands)

Available for sale:
FHLB notes $ 29,839 $ 1,152 $ _ $ 36,981
FHLMC notes 10,089 369 —_ 10,458
39,928 1,521 —_— 41,449
Equity securities 3,877 1,088 —_ 4,965
43,805 2,609 —_ 46,414

Held to maturity:

Municipal securities 200 20 — 220
266 26 —_ 226
FHLMC mortgage-backed securities 87,698 1,535 —_ 85,233
FNMA morigage-backed securities 66,016 1,651 — 87,867
153,714 3,186 — 156,300
§197,719 $ 5815 $ —_ $203,534
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The amortized cost and estimated market value of investment and mortgage-backed securities at September 30,

2000 are as follows:

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized unrealized unrealized market
cost gains losses value
(In thousands)
Available for sale:
FHLB notes $ 59,718 $ 79 $ 498 $ 59,299
FNMA notes 19,990 —_ 51 19,939
79,708 79 549 79,238
Equity securities 5,678 891 40 6,529
85,386 970 589 85,767
Held to maturity:
Municipal securities 200 — — 200
200 — — 200
FHLMC mortgage-backed securities 75,288 244 2,187 73,345
FNMA mortgage-backed securities 89,771 189 1,452 88,508
165,059 433 3,639 161,853
$ 250,645 $ 1,403 $ 4,228 $ 247,820

The amortized cost and estimated market value of
debt securities at September 30, 2001 and 2000 by
contractual maturity are shown below. Expected
maturities will differ from contractual maturities

because borrowers may have the right to call or
prepay obligations with or without call or prepay-
ment penalties.

2001 2000
Estimated Estimated
Amortized market Amortized market
cost value cost value
(In thousands)
Available for sale:
Due in one year or less $ 10,000 $ 10,175 $ 29,950 $ 29,846
Due in one to five years 29,928 31,274 49,718 49,392
39,928 41,449 79,708 79,238
Held to maturity:
Due in one year or less - — — —
Due after ten years 200 220 200 200
200 220 200 200
FHLMC mortgage-backed securities 87,698 89,233 75,288 73,345
FNMA mortgage-backed securities 66,016 67,667 89,771 88,508
153,714 156,900 165,059 161,853
$193,842 $198,569 $ 244,967 $ 241,291
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Gross realized gains and gross realized losses on
sales of available for sale securities totaled $889,170
and -0- during 2001. Gross realized gains and gross
realized losses on sales of available for sale securi-
ties totaled $103,279 and -0- during 2000. There were
no sales of available for sale securities during 1999.

As of September 30, 2001, the Company had pledged

3 Leans

Loans at September 30, 2001 and 2000 are summa-
rized below:

securities with a market value of $2,023,000 and a car-
rying value of $1,974,803 to collateralize the public
funds on deposit. The Company had also pledged
mortgage-backed securities with a market value of
$621,000 and a carrying value of $593,000 tc collater-
alize treasury, tax and loan accounts as of September
30, 2001.

Mortgage loans:
Construction 1-4 family
Permanent 14 family
Multi-family
Nonresidential
Land
Total mortgage loans

Other loans:
Commercial
Home improvement
Manufactured housing
Other consumer
Total other loans
Total loans

Less:
Loans in process
Net deferred loan fees and discounts
Allowance for loan losses

Total loans, net

Weighted average yield

2001 2000
(Dollars in thousands)
$ 119,648 3 106,063
1,016,248 899,229
21,314 20,474
129,875 120,067
51,196 54,731
1,338,281 1,200,564
31,945 28,606
24,973 21,636
14,607 15,736
95,074 79,363
166,599 145,341
1,504,880 1,345,905
84,777 77,074
4813 4,433
13,417 12,729
103,007 94,236
$ 1,401,873 $ 1,251,669
8.17% 8.07%

An analysis of the allowance for loan losses for the years ended September 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999 follows:

Beginning balance
Provision for loan losses
Charge-oifs

Recoveries

Ending balance

2001 2000 1999
(In thousands)
$ 12,729 $ 11,952 $ 11,818
798 847 816
353) (233) (762)
243 163 80
$ 13,417 $ 12,729 $ 11,952
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At September 30, 2001 and 2000, loans with unpaid
principal balances of approximately $2,585,000 and
$2,766,000, respectively, were 90 days or more con-
tractually delinquent or on nonaccrual status.
Interest income relating to nonaccrual loans not rec-
ognized for the years ended September 30, 2001,
2000 and 1999 totaled approximately $177,000,
$159,000, and $184,000, respectively.

As of September 30, 2001 and 2000, approximately
$2,011,000 and $2,463,000, respectively, of loans 90
days or more contractually delinquent were in the
process of foreclosure.

The investment in impaired loans (primarily consist-
ing of classified loans), other than those evaluated
collectively for impairment, at September 30, 2001,
2000 and 1999 was $5,813,000, $3,748,000 and
$4,511,000, respectively. The average recorded
investment in impaired loans during the years ended
September 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999 were approxi-
mately $4,949,000, $3,435,000 and $5,118,000, respec-
tively. The total specific allowance for loan losses
related to these loans was $-0- on September 30, 2001
and 2000. Interest income on impaired loans of
approximately $437,000, $311,000 and $461,000 was
recognized in the years ended September 30, 2001,
2000 and 1999, respectively.

As of September 30, 2001 and 2000, mortgage loans
which had been sold on a recourse basis had out-
standing principal balances of $644,000 and
$985,000, respectively.

Accrued interest receivable at September 30, 2001
and 2000 is summarized below:

2001 2000
(in thousands)
Loans $ 7,248 $ 6,346
Investment securities 858 834
Mortgage-backed securities 863 965
FHLB stock dividends 241 242
$ 9,210 $ 8,387
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The Company is a party to financial instruments in
the normal course of business to meet the financing
needs of its customers. These financial instruments
include commitments to extend credit and standby
letters of credit. These instruments involve, to vary-
ing degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk
in excess of the amount recognized in the statements
of condition. The contract or notional amounts of
these instruments reflect the extent of involvement
the Company has in particular classes of financial
instruments. The Company uses the same credit
policies in making commitments as it does for on-
balance sheet instruments. The Company controls
the credit risk of these transactions through credit
approvals, limits, and monitoring procedures. Such
commitments are agreements to lend to a customer
as long as there is no violation of conditions estab-
lished in the contract. Commitments generally have
fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses.
Standby letters of credit are conditional commit-
ments issued by the Company to guarantee the per-
formance of a customer to a third party. The credit
risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially
the same as that involved in extending loan facilities
to customers. The Company holds collateral sup-
porting those commitments for which collateral is
deemed necessary. Since many of the commitments
are expected to expire without being drawn upon,
the total commitment amounts do not necessarily
represent future cash requirements.

Outstanding mortgage loan commitments (excluding
loans in process), that generally expire in 60 days,
amounted to approximately $28,679,000
($17,701,000 fixed rate, interest rates from 6.24% to
5.00%) as of September 30, 2001. In addition, as of
September 30, 2001, the Company had determined
that $33,251,000 might be lent to certain home-
builders on a variable rate and home-by-home basis,
subject to underwriting and product approval by the
Company. Outstanding other loan commitments as
of September 30, 2001
$1,195,000.

were approximately
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@) Loan Servicing

Mortgage loans, including those underlying pass
through securities, serviced for others are not
included in the accompanying consolidated

financial staterments. The unpaid principal balances
of these loans at September 30, 2001 and 2000 are
summarized as follows:

FHLMC
FNMA
Other Investors

2001 2600
(In thousands)
$ 6,238 $ 8,432
51,263 31,437
353 392
$§ 57,856 $ 40,261

At September 30, 2001 and 2000, collection of
principal and interest to be remitted tc FHLMC and
FNMA and advance payment for taxes and insurance
relating to FHLMC and FNMA serviced loans are

(5 Premises and Equipment

reflected in the consolidated statements of financial
condition as advance deposits by borrowers for
taxes and insurance.

Premises and equipment at September 30, 2601 and 2000 are summarized as follows:

Land
Buildings and leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

2001 2000
(iIn thousands)

$ 7,826 $ 6,841
15,498 14,137
14,865 12,841
38,189 33,819
(14,088 (12,698)

$ 24,101 $ 21,121

Depreciation expense for the years ended September 30, 2001, 2000, and 1999 totaled $1,977,000, $1,725,000, and
$1,473,000, respectively.




NoTEs T0 CONSOLIDATED [FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(6) Deposils
Deposits at September 30, 2001 and 2000 are summarized as follows.
2001 2000

Period-end Period-end
Amount weighted rate Amount weighted rate

(Dollars in thousands)

Commercial checking $ 60,758 $ 51,501
Noninterest-bearing

personal checking accounts 61,357 51,033
NOW 80,342 0.50% 70,881 0.74%
Passbook 96,516 1.05% 95,431 1.58%
Money market checking 1,768 1.28% 1,398 1.27%
Money market investment 126,686 2.56% 93,825 4.54%

Official checks 15,938 11,729

443,365 375,798

Certificate accounts:

2.01 - 3.00% 10,875 103

3.01 - 4.00% 90,812 5,081

4.01-5.00% 181,100 124,393

5.01 - 6.00% 183,727 300,063

6.01 - 7.00% 282,215 279,215

7.01 - 8.00% 7,980 13,866

8.01-9.00% i8 18

756,727 722,739

$1,200,092 $1,098,537

Weighted average interest rate 3.81% 4.42%

Maturities of outstanding certificates of deposit at September 30, 2001 and 2000 are summarized as follows:

2001 2000
(In thousands)
Less than one year $ 548,930 $ 445,765
One to three years 196,210 263,648
Over three years 11,587 13,326

$ 756,727 $ 722,739

The aggregate amount of certificates of deposit in amounts of $100,000 or more was approximately $108,421,000
and $83,795,000 at September 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Balances of individual certificates in excess of
$100,000 are not federally insured.

Interest expense on deposits is summarized as follows:

2001 2000 1999
(in thousands)
Passbook accounts $ 1,264 $ 2,002 $ 1,993
NOW, money market checking, and money market
investment accounts 4,577 2,466 1,781
Certificate accounts 44,563 37,546 33,945
$ 50,404 $ 42,014 $ 37,7119

Early withdrawal penalties for the years ended September 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999 aggregated $225,588, $282,540,
and $194,563, respectively, and are netted against interest expense on certificate accounts.

Accrued interest payable of $302,397 and $342,364 at September 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively, is included in
other liabilities.
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(7) Short-Term Borrowings

At September 30, 2001, shori-terin borrowings from
the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) were comprised
of a $10 million advance due June 30, 2002, with fixed
terms and a fixed interest rate of 6.10%. Also included
in short-term borrowings is a note payable, maturing
August 2002, with a fixed interest rate of 8%, relating to
the purchase of an insurance agency. The balance at
September 30, 2001 was approximately $43,000.

At September 30, 2000, shori-term borrowings frem
the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) were comprised
of a $5 million advance due September 30, 2001,
with fixed terms and a fixed interest rate of 6.13%, and
a $13 million daily advance, with interest at September
30, 2000 of 6.94%.

Information concerning short-term borrowings is summarized as follows:

Average balance during the year
Average interest rate during the year
Maximum month-end balance during the year

2008 2000
(Dollars in thousands)
$ 12,127 $ 7,944
8.81% 6.62%
] 31,000 $ 18,000

@&

Long-Term Debt

Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB)
were $285.5 million and $220 millicn at September 30,
2001 and 2000, respectively. The debt is due at various
dates through January 2021, with fixed terms and fixed
interest rates ranging from 3.00% to 6.50%.

Pursuant tc a collateral agreement with the FHLB,
advances are secured by all stock in the FHLB and a
blanket floating lien that requires the Company to
maintain qualifying first mortgage loans as pledged
collateral in an amount equal to, when discounted at
75% of the unpaid principal balances, the advances.

At September 30, 2001 and 2000, the FHLB advances have fiscal year maturity dates as follows:

2001 2000

Weighted
average rate

Weighted

Amount average rate

Amount
Year ending September 30,

2002 $ -
2003 22,060
2004 25,600
2005 13,800
2006 5,000
2007 and after 223,544

$285,544

(Dollars in thousands)

10,600 6.10%
8.20% 22,000 6.20%
5.806% 25,000 5.80%
5.97% 13,000 5.97%
5.95% 5,000 5.95%
5.20% 145,600 5.32%
5.38% $ 220,000 5.55%

Of the FHLB advances due 2007 and after, the FHLB could cail $85 million on specified dates in 2003, $60 million
on specified dates in 2005, and $75 million on specified daies in 2006.

Other interest expense is summarized as follows:

Advances from the FHLB
Other

2001 2000 1999
(In thousands)
$ 14,817 $ 13,195 $ 11,117
i3 () 4
$ 14,830 $ 13,201 $ 11,121
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@) Income Taxes

Income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended September 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999 is summarized as follows:

2001 2000 1999
(In thousands)
Current:
Federal 8 13,712 $ 12,133 $ 11,430
State 2,248 2,018 1,790
15,960 14,151 13,220
Deferred:
Federal (284) 370) (B7
State 61 (62) ®
(334} (432) (66)
$ 15,626 $ 13,719 $ 13,154

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at
September 30, 2001 and 2000 are as follows:

2001 2000

(In thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Allowance for bad debts $ 3,897 $ 3,157
Valuation of real estate owned 2 11
Deferred compensation 934 905
Total deferred tax assets 4,833 4,073
Deferred tax liability:
Net deferred loan fees and costs 3,871 3,753
FHLB stock dividend 840 840
Premises and equipment depreciation difference 1,058 718
Installment sales 77 96
Total deferred tax liabilities 5,846 5,407
1,013 1,334
Unrealized gain on available for sale securities 1,007 148
Net deferred tax liability 2,020 1,482
Less liability at beginning of year (1,482) (1,782)
Deferred taxes resulting from acquisition
of insurance agency 13 61
Change in unrealized gain on available
for sale securities (859 (193)
Benefit for deferred income taxes $ (3349 $ (432)
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Income tax expense on income from continuing opera-
tions is different than the amount computed by applying
the United States Federal income tax rate of 35% for 2001,

2000 and 1999 to income from continuing operations
before income taxes because of the following:

Statutory Federal income tax rate

State income tax (net of Federal income tax benefit)

Other
Effective tax expense rate

2001 2000 1999
35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
3.6 3.6 3.6
N 1 (0.3)
39.3% 38.7% 38.3%

Deferred income taxes payable of approximately
$2,020,000 and $1,482,000 at September 30, 2001 and
2000, respectively, are included in other liabilities.

Retained earnings at September 30, 2001 includes
approximately $14,800,000 base year tax bad debt
reserve for which no deferred income tax liability
has been recognized. This amount represents an
allocation of income tc bad debt deductions.
Reduction of amounts so allocated for purposes
other than tax bad debt losses or adjustments aris-
ing from carryback of net operating losses would
create income for tax purposes only, which income
would be subject to the then current corporate

income tax rate. The unrecorded deferred income
tax liability on the above amounts was approxi-
mately $5,696,000 at September 30, 2001.

(10) Net Income per Share

Net income per share was computed by dividing net
income by the weighted average number of shares
of common stock outstanding during the twelve
monihs ended September 30, 2001, 2000, and 1999.
Adjustments have been made, where material, to
give effect to the shares that would be outstanding,
assuming the exercise of dilutive stock options, all
of which are considered common stock equivalents.

Net income
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Shares outstanding

Less weighted average uncommitted ESOP shares

Total

Basic earnings per share

Weighted average common shares outstanding

Additional dilutive shares related to stock options

Total weighted average commmon shares and

equivalents outstanding for diluted earnings

per share computation

Diluted earnings per share

Years Ended September 30,

2001 2000 1999
$ 24,108,342 $ 21,748,045 $ 21,218,745
24,350,518 25,730,986 29,044,075
(1,172,534 (1,241,943) (1,316,732)
23,178,084 24,489,043 27,727,343
$ 1.064 $ 0.89 $0.77
23,178,084 24,489,043 27,727,343
538,852 215,280 268,481
23,716,736 24,704,323 27,995,824
§ 1.52 $ 0.88 $ 0.76
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Additional dilutive shares are calculated under the
treasury stock method utilizing the average market
value of the Company’s stock for the period. For the
year ended September 30, 2001 there were 1,746
common stock options and 555 unvested RRP
shares that were antidilutive and therefore not
included in the above calculation. For the year
ended September 30, 2000, there were 143,900 com-
mon stock options and 23,304 unvested RRP shares
that were antidilutive and therefore not included in
the above calculation. For the year ended
September 30, 1999, there were 72,500 shares of
common stock options and no unvested RRP shares
that were antidilutive and not included in the above
calculation.

(11) Regulatory and Capital Matters

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital
requirements administered by the federal banking
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital require-
ments can initiate certain mandatory, and possibly
additional discretionary, actions by regulators that,
if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on
the Company’s financial statements. Under capital
adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework
for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet
specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative
measures of the Bank’s assets, liabilities, and cer-

tain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under reg-
ulatory accounting practices. The Bank’s capital
amounts and classification are also subject to qual-
itative judgments by the regulators about compo-
nents, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to
ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to main-
tain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the
table below) of total and Tier I capital (as defined in
the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as
defined), and of Tier I capital (as defined) to aver-
age assets (as defined). During 2000, the minimum
ratio for Tier 1 capital was adjusted from 4% to 3 %
for savings associations that meet certain require-
ments. Management believes, as of September 30,
2001, that the Bank meets all capital adequacy
requirements to which it is subject.

As of September 30, 2001 and 2000, the most recent
notification from the Office of Thrift Supervision
categorized the Bank as well capitalized under the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action.
To be categorized as well capitalized the Bank must
maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier [ risk-
based, and Tier I leverage ratios as set forth in the
table. There are no conditions or events since that
notification that management believes have
changed the institution’s category.

The Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios are also presented in the table.

Actual
Amount Ratio

To be well capitalized

For capital under prompt corrective
adequacy purpose action provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

As of September 30, 2001
Total capital

(to risk-weighted assets) $202,510 19.87%
Tier I (core) capital
(to risk-weighted assets) 190,933  18.74%

Tier I {core) capital

(to adjusted tangible assets) 190,933 10.93%
Tangible capital

(to adjusted tangible assets) 190,933  10.93%

As of September 30, 2000
Total capital

(to risk-weighted assets) $176,676  19.48%
Tier 1 (core) capital -
(to risk-weighted assets) 166,527 18.36%

Tier I (core) capital

(to adjusted tangible assets) 166,527 10.58%
Tangible capital

(to adjusted tangible assets) 166,527 10.58%

(Dollars in thousands)

$ 81,527 >8.0% $101,909 >10.0%
30,573 >3.0% 61,145 > 6.0%
52,401 >3.0% 87,335 > 5.0%
26,200 >1.5% n/a n/a

$ 72,549 >8.0% $ 90,687 >10.0%
27,206 >3.0% 54,412 > 6.0%
47,205 >3.0% 78,675 >5.0%
23,602 >1.5% n/a n/a
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The certificate of incorporation of the Company
provides that in no event shall any record owner of
any outstanding common stock which is beneficial-
ly owned, directly or indirectly, by a person who
beneficially owns in excess of 10% of the then out-
standing shares of common stock (the “Limit”) be
entitled or permitted to any vote in respect of the
shares held in excess of the Limit.

The Company has authorized but not issued pre-
ferred stock, subject to regulatory restrictions and
determination of rights and preferences to be deter-
mined by the Board of Directors.

The Plan of Conversion (Note 1a) provided for the
establishment of a special “liquidation account” for
the benefit of Eligible Account Holders and
Supplemental Eligible Account Holders in an
amount equal to the amount of any dividends
waived by the Mutual Holding Company plus the
greater of (1) 100% of the Bank's retained esarnings
of $34.5 million at September 30, 1992, the date of
the latest balance sheet contained in the final offer-
ing circular utilized in the Bank’s initial public offer-
ing in the Mutual Helding Company reorganization,
or (2) 53.41% of the Bank’s total stockholders’ equi-
ty as reflected in its latest balance sheet contained
in the final prospectus utilized in the Offering plus
the amounts distributed to Bancorp by the Bank at
the formation of Bancorp in 1998. Each eligible
Account Holder and Supplemental Eligible Account
Holdery, if such person were to continue to maintain
such person’s deposit account at the Bank, would
be entitled, upon a complete liquidation of the Bank
after the conversion, to an interest in the liquida-
tion account prior to any payment to the Company
as the sole stockholder of the Bank.

Applicable rules and regulations of the OTS impose
limitations on dividends paid by the Bank. Within
those limitations, certain “safe harbor” dividends
are permitted; subject to providing the OTS at least
30 days’ advance notice. The safe harbor amount is
based upon an institution’s regulatory capital level.

az

Thrift institutions which have capital in excess of
all capiial requirements before and after the pro-
posed dividend, are permitied tc make capital dis-
tributions during any calendar year up to the
greater of (i) 100% of net income o date during the
calendar year, plus one-half of the surplus over
such institution’s capital requirements at the begin-
ning of the calendar year, or (ii) 75% of net income
over the most recent f{our-quarter period.
Additicnal restrictions would apply to an institu-
tion that does not meet its capital requirement
before or after a proposed dividend. As of
September 30, 2001, $80,004,000 was available for
distribution from the Bank to the holding company
without further regulatory approval.

Commitments and Contingencies

At September 30, 2001, the Company had irrevoca-
ble letters of credit aggregating approximately
$4,055,000.

The Company and subsidiaries are defendants in
certain claims and legal actions arising in the ordi-
nary course of business. In the opinion of manage-
ment, after consultation with legal counsel, the ulti-
mate disposition of these matters is not expected to
have a material adverse effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Company and sub-
sidiaries.

(18) Related Parly Transactions

Directors, executive officers and principal stock-
holders of the Company had certain transactions
with the Company in the crdinary course of busi-
ness, as described below.

Loan transactions were made on substantially the
same terms as those prevailing at the time for
comparable loans to other persons, did not involve
more than normal risk of collectibility, and are per-
forming as agreed.

The summary of changes in the related party loans follows:

20038 2000 1999
(In thousands)
QOutstanding loans — beginning of year $ 1,802 $ 2,658 $ 1,882
New loans 224 5,655 6,525
Repayments 278 (6,511) (5,749)
Outstanding balance — end of year $ 1,748 $ 1,802 $ 2,658
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Frank H. Fee, Ill, a director of the Company, is also
President of the law firm of Fee & Koblegard, P.A,
which does business under the registered name of
Fee, Koblegard & DeRoss, a general practice law
firm. The Company paid approximately $149,000,
$177,000, and $126,000, of legal fees in the years
ended September 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respec-
tively, to this law firm.

Richard K. Davis, formerly a director of the
Company, is also chairman of Richard K. Davis

(14) Other Expense

Construction Corp. (“Davis Construction”). In the
year ended September 30, 2000, the Company paid
Davis Construction a total of $201,229, respectively,
for roof construction on branch facilities and ten-
ant improvements on rental property.

During 2000, the Company purchased the Enns
Agency, owned by Edward G. Enns, Chairman of the
Company. (See Note 17.)

Other expense for the years ended September 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999 consists of the following:

Professional fees

Deposit account losses

Postage

Telephone

Office supplies and forms

SAIF deposit insurance premium
Other

o

2001 2000 19

(In thousands)

$ 586 $ 772 $ 558
781 517 425

566 501 409

515 394 353

483 417 394

216 299 552

2,819 2,243 1,977

$ 5,966 $ 5,143 $ 4,668
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(15) Disclosures about Failr Velue of Financial

Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used
to estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instruments for which it is practicable to estimate
that value:

Cash _and _Amounts Due From Depository
Institutions and Interesi-Bearing Deposits in Other

Banks - The carrying amount of these assets is a
reasonable estimate of their fair value.

Investinent Securities and Morigage-Backed
Securities Held to Maturity — Fair value equals

quoted market price, if available. If a quoted mar-
ket price is not available, fair value is estimated
using quoted market prices for similar securities.

Investment Securities Available for Sale - Fair value
eguals carrying value, which equals quoted market
price, if available. If a quoted market price is not
available, fair value is estimated using quoted mar-
ket prices for similar securities.

Loans — The fair value of loans is estimated by dis-
counting future cash flows using the current rate at
which similar loans would be made to borrowers
with similar credit ratings for the same remaining
maturities.

Deposits — The fair value of demand deposits, inter-
est-bearing checking accounts, savings and money
market deposits is the amount payable on demand
at the reporting date. The fair value of certificates
of deposit is estimated by discounting future cash
flows using the rates currently offered for deposits
of similar remaining maturities.

Advances from the FHLB - The fair value of FHLB
advances is estimated based on rates currently
available to the Company for FHLB advances with
similar terms and maturities.

Commitments to Extend Credit and Standby
Letters of Credit — The fair value of commitments is

insignificant.

The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments at September 30, 2001 and 2000

are as follows:

2001 2600
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
(In thousands)
Assets:

Cash and amounts due

from depository institutions 8 41,134 $ 41,134 $ 29,085 $ 29,085
Interest-bearing deposits in other banks 51,658 51,658 729 729
Investment securities held to maturity 200 220 200 200
Investment securities available for sale 46,414 46,414 85,767 85,767
Mortgage-backed securities

held to maturity 153,714 156,900 165,059 161,853
Loans held for sale 5,373 5,512 2,548 2,548
Loans 1,415,290 1,452,881 1,264,398 1,256,654
Less allowance for loan losses (13,417 — (12,729 —

Loans, net 1,401,873 1,452,881 1,251,669 1,256,654

Liabilities:

Commercial checking, non-interest-

bearing personal, NOW, passbook,

money market accounts

and official checks 443,365 443,365 375,798 375,798
Certificate accounts 756,727 770,006 722,739 719,232
Short term borrowings 10,043 10,219 18,000 17,973
Long term debt 285,544 300,147 220,091 212,870
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Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in
time based on relevant market information and
information about the financial instrument. These
estimates do not reflect any premium or discount
that could result from offering for sale at one time
the Company'’s entire holdings of a particular finan-
cial instrument. Because no market exists for a
portion of the Company’s financial instruments,
fair value estimates are based on judgments regard-
ing future expected loss experience, current eco-
nomic conditions, risk characteristics of various
financial instruments and other factors. These esti-
mates are subjective in nature and involve uncer-
tainties and matters of significant judgment and,
therefore, cannot be determined with precision.
Changes in assumptions could significantly affect
the estimates.

Benefit Plans
Employee Stock Quwnership Plan

In January, 1994, as part of the reorganization to
the stock form of ownership, the Company's
Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP™) pur-
chased 900,208 shares of the Company’s common
stock at $1.664 per share, or $1,498,000, which was
funded by a loan from an unaffiliated lender. In
March 1998 as part of the reorganization and con-
version of Harbor Financial, M.H.C., the Company’s
ESOP purchased 1,326,940 shares of the
Company’s common stock at $10 per share, which
was funded by a loan from the Company. The
ESOP covers all eligible employees of the
Company age 21 and over. Dividends paid on unal-
located shares reduce the Company’s cash contri-
bution to the ESOP. GAAP requires that any third
party borrowing by the ESOP be reflected as a lia-
bility on the Company’s statement of financial con-
dition. The ESOP’s borrowing from the Company
is eliminated in consolidation. At September 30,
2001, there were 868,068 allocated shares, 52,379
shares committed to be released, and 1,134,883
suspense (unallocated and not yet committed to
be released) shares held by the ESOP. As shares
are released, the Company recognizes compensa-
tion expense equal to the current market price of
the shares. Allocated shares and shares commit-
ted to be released are included in the weighted
average common shares outstanding used to com-
pute earnings per share. Total compensation
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expense charged to earnings in the years ended
September 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999, totaled
$1,098,793, $802,072, and $1,101,982, respectively.
At September 30, 2001, the fair value of the unallo-
cated shares was $21,216,372.

Recognition and Retention Plans and
Stock Option Plans

The Company's 1998 Stock Incentive Plan, adopted
on September 18, 1998, authorizes the award of
Recognition and Retention Plan Shares (RRP
Shares) and the granting of options to purchase
common stock. As of September 30, 2001, the
Company has awarded 641,553 RRP shares at
$10.96 average price per share totaling $7,033,942.
The total award will be amortized as compensation
expense ratably over the participants’ vesting peri-
ods of 5 to 10 years. In November and December,
1998, the Company’s Recognition and Retention
Plan (RRP) purchased 663,470 shares from market
sources at an average cost of $10.81 per share total-
ing $7,171,000 in order to fund the grants of RRP
shares. Total compensation expense charged to
earnings in the years ended September 30, 2001,
2000 and 1999, totaled $897,090, $871,121, and
$924,354, respectively.

At September 30, 2001, the Company had stock
option plans for the benefit of directors, officers,
and other key employees of the Company. The
Company applies APB Opinion 25 and related
Interpretations in accounting for its plans.
Accordingly, no compensation cost has been rec-
ognized for its fixed stock option plans since stock
option exercise prices are equal to market price at
dates of grant. The number of shares of common
stock reserved for issuance under the 1994 stock
option plan is equal to 1,286,012 shares, or 9.6% of
the total number of common shares issued in the
minority offering pursuant to the Company’s reor-
ganization to the stock form of ownership. The
number of shares of common stock reserved for
issuance under the 1998 Stock Incentive Plan is
equal to 1,658,675 or 5.40% of the outstanding
shares of common stock as of the effective date of
the plan. The stock options vest in equal install-
ments over varying periods not to exceed 10
years, depending upon the individual's position in
the Company. At September 30, 2001, 224,551
shares were available for future awards.
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A summary of the Company’s stock option plans is presented below:
Years Ended September 30,
20061 2000 1999
Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average
exercise exercise exercise
Number price Number price Number price
Options outstanding beginning of year 1,595,584 § 9.91 1,716,425 $ 9.69 1,919,673 $ 8.90
Options granted 113,547 § 13.82 88,175 $ 12.28 60,000 $ 11.86
Options exercised (76,906) S 6.00 (39,542) $ 2.42 (190,137) $ 2.12
Options forfeited 82,331) & 1i6.89 (169,464) % 10.67 (73,111) § 10.36
Opticns outstanding end of year 1,555,904 §$§ 10.35 1,595,504 $ 9.91 1,716,425 $ 9.69
Options exercisable at year-end 612,866 428,242 305,253
Weighted average fair value of options
granted during the year § 4.20 $ 4.48 $ 435
The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at September 30, 2001:
Options outstanding Options exercisable
Weighted
Number average Weighted Number Weighted
Range of outstanding @ remaining average exeircise exercisable @ average exercise
exercise prices 9/30/01 contractual life price 9/30/01 price
$1.664 86,344 2.3 $1.66 86,344 $1.66
$2.746 to 4.493 32,651 3.8 $ 3.87 32,651 3.87
$5.638 to 5.658 21,032 5.3 $ 5.66 — —
$6.365 to 6.781 3,004 5.7 $ 6.41 — —
$10.69 to 12.00 1,232,986 7.0 $10.76 485,897 10.72
$12.38 t0 12.44 67,840 8.2 $12.42 7,974 12.38
$13.19 to 18.48 112,047 9.3 $14.16 — —
Total 1,555,904 612,866
Had compensation cost for the Company's stock-based compensation plans been determined in accordance with
the fair value based method in Statement 123, the Company’s net income and net income per share would have
been reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated below:
2001 2000 1999
(in thousands except share data)
Net income As reported § 24,108 $ 21,748 $ 21,219
Pro forma 22,852 20,565 20,119
Net income per share - basic As reported 1.04 .89 i
Pro forma 89 .84 73
Net income per share — diluted As reported 1.02 .88 .76
Pro forma .96 .83 .72

Only options granted after October 1, 1995 are included in pro forma amounts.
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The option method used to calculate the Statement 123 compensation adjustment was the Binomial model with
the following grant date fair values and assumptions:

Number of
Date of options Grant date Exercise Risk free Expected Expected Expected
grant granted fair value price interest rate life (years) volatility dividend
01/06/96 27,038 $1.10 $4.49 5.421% 5 38.71 $.27
11/27/96 6,009 1.21 5.64 5912 5 29.89 .30
01/06/97 18,028 1.19 5.66 6.291 5 28.33 .30
06/16/97 2,704 1.50 6.37 6.276 5 30.71 32
06/20/97 300 1.67 6.78 6.271 5 31.11 .32
07/08/98 15,000 4.68 12.00 5.433 5 32.66 .38
09/18/98 1,498,615 3.96 10.69 4517 5 35.13 .38
12/08/98 1,500 4.21 10.94 4.379 5 36.20 .46
04/19/99 58,500 4.35 11.88 5.044 5 32.25 46
12/08/99 53,131 4.60 12.44 6.050 5 33.90 .52
01/07/00 17,889 4,58 12.38 6.411 5 33.83 .52
01/21/00 10,000 4.65 12.38 6.632 5 33.33 .52
04/19/00 7,155 3.04 10.75 6.230 5 26.95 52
12/06/00 66,547 3.71 13.19 5.257 5 27.44 .60
12/13/00 30,000 4.39 14.63 5.215 5 27.93 .60
02/14/01 4,500 4.83 15.06 5.013 5 30.94 .60
04/23/01 2,500 5.14 15.47 4.684 5 31.56 .60
06/26/01 10,000 6.39 18.48 4.713 5 30.87 .60
Other Plans 2001, 2000 and 1999, the Company’s matching con-

tribution totaled approximately $111,000, $88,000,

The Company has a noncontributory-defined bene- and $96,000, respectively.

fit pension plan covering all fulltime employees

who have attained one year of service and 21 years
of age. Pension expense was $12,000, $9,600, and
$11,500, respectively, for the years ended
September 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999. The plan is a
multi-employer plan. Separate actuarial valuations
are not made for each employer nor are plan assets
so segregated. The assumed average rate of return
used in determining the actuarial present value of
accumulated plan benefits was 8%. The date of the
most recent actuarial evaluation is July 1, 2000.

The Company's 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan and
Trust (the “401(k) Plan™) covers all eligible employ-
ees of the Company age 21 and over. An eligible
employee may elect to contribute to the 401(k)
Plan in the form of deferrals of between 1% and 15%
of the total compensation that would otherwise be
payable to the employee. Employee contributions
are fully vested and nonforfeitable at all times. The
401(k) Plan permits contributions by the Company.
The Company currently makes matching contribu-
tions of 25% of the first 6% of each participant’s
contributions. For the years ended September 30,
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The Company has a deferred compensation plan for
Directors (the “Directors’ Deferred Compensation
Plan”) who may elect to defer all or part of their
annual director fees to fund the Directors’ Deferred
Compensation Plan. The plan provides that deferred
fees are to earn interest at an annual rate equal to the
30-month certificate of deposit rate, adjusted and
compounded quarterly. At September 30, 2001 and
2000, deferred directors’ fees included in other liabil-
ities aggregated $209,932 and $241,122, respectively.
Directors may elect to have their deferred compen-
sation balance invested in shares of the Company’s
common stock. Such purchases were approximately
$168,000, $137,000, and $113,000, in 2001, 2000 and
1999, respectively. After purchase of shares of the
Company’s common stock, the Company’s liability
has been satisfied except for distribution of the
shares to the director when he ceases to be a direc-
tor. At September 30, 2001 and 2000, the Directors’
Deferred Compensation Plan held 301,936 and
295,386 shares of the Company’s common stock,
respectively.
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The Company also has a retirement plan for non-
employee directors (the “Plan™). The annual basic
benefit under the Plan is based on a percentage of
the average three years director’s fees preceding
the termination of service multiplied by the num-
ber of years of service, not to exceed 50% of the
average annual director’s fees. During the years
ended September 30, 2001, 2000 and 15999, the
charge to earnings relating to the Plan was
insignificant.

)

Acqguisition of Insurance Agencies

On July 3, 2000, the Bank acquired all of the cut-
standing common stock of Haynes and Haynes
Insurance Company, a property and casualty insur-
ance company located in Ft. Pierce, Florida, for
approximately $1.1 million in common stock of the
Company. The insurance company’s name was
subsequently changed to Harbor Insurance
Agency, Inc.

Harbor Insurance Agency, Inc., a wholly owned sub-
sidiary of the Bank, will continue to operate at
Haynes and Haynes Insurance Company'’s location
in Ft. Pierce, Florida. The principal owners and

managers of Haynes and Haynes Insurance
Company will continue as the management team
for Harbor Insurance Agency, Inc.

On July 21, 2000, Harbor Insurance Agency com-
pleted the acquisition of certain assets of the Enns
Agency for approximately $98,500 in cash and a
$98,500 note payable. (See Note 7.) The Enns
Agency was located in Ft. Pierce, Florida and spe-
cialized in property and casualty insurance. The
Enns Agency was owned by Edward G. Enns,
Chairman of the Company.

On February 6, 2001, Harbor Insurance Agency
completed the acquisition of The Acker-Hall
Insurance Agency for approximately $147,000 in
common stock of the Company. The Acker-Hall
Insurance Agency is located in Vero Beach,
Florida and specializes in property and casualty
insurance.

The acquisitions were accounted for using the pur-
chase method. The results of operations of the
insurance agencies acquired are included in the
consolidated financial statements of the Company
from the date of acquisition.

The fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in conjunction with the acquisitions of the insurance

agencies was as follows:

Cash

Premises and equipment
Deferred tax asset

Goodwill

Other assets

Fair value of assets acquired

Other liabilities
Fair value of liabilities assumed

Fair value of net assets acquired
Acquisition costs

Purchase of insurance agencies

Cash acquired

Treasury shares issued

Notes Payable issued

Net cash used by (provided by)
purchase of insurance agencies

2001 2000
(In thousands)
— $ 292
i 6
- 61
258 1,256
- - 1
259 1,616
112 332
112 332
147 1,284
) 36
156 1,320
_ 292
147 1,087
—_ 99
$ 9 $ (158)

As of September 30, 2001, goodwill related to purchase of the insurance agencies is approximately $1.4 million.

The Company plans to adopt Statement 142 effective October 1, 2001 and will no longer amortize goodwill.

(See note 1(r).)
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(18) Quarterly Resulis of Operations (Unaudited)

The quarterly results of operations for the years ended September 30, 2001 and 2000 are as follows:

For the three months ended fiscal 2001

September 30 June 30 March 31 December 31
(In thousands except share data)
Interest income $ 31,958 $§ 31,995 $ 31,495 $ 30,602
Interest expense 15,955 16,606 16,590 16,083
Net interest income 16,003 15,389 14,965 14,519
Provision for loan losses 218 170 209 201
Net interest income after provision
for loan losses 15,785 15,219 14,696 14,318
Total other income 2,778 3,182 2,711 3,659
Total other expenses 8,543 8,383 8,077 7,611
Income before income taxes 10,020 10,018 9,330 10,366
Income tax 3,980 3,946 3,658 4,042
Net income $ 6,040 $§ 6,072 $§ 5,672 $ 6,324
Net income per share
Basic $ 0.26 $ 0.27 $ 0.24 $ 0.27
Diluted ] 0.26 $ 0.25 ] 0.24 ] 0.27
For the three months ended fiscal 2000
September 30 June 30 March 31 December 31
(In thousands except share data)
Interest income $ 29,655 $ 28,437 $ 27,283 $ 26,947
Interest expense 15,125 13,883 13,213 12,994
Net interest income 14,530 14,554 14,070 13,953
Provision for loan losses 210 244 189 204
Net interest income after provision
for loan losses 14,320 14,310 13,881 13,749
Total other income 2,377 1,961 1,816 1,697
Total other expenses 7,337 7,070 7,199 7,038
Income before income taxes 9,360 9,201 8,498 8,408
Income tax 3,632 3,540 3,287 3,260
Net income $ 5,728 $ 5,661 $ 5,211 $ 5,148
Net income per share
Basic $ 0.24 $ 0.24 $ 0.21 $ 0.20
Diluted $ 0.24 $ 0.23 $ 0.21 $ 0.20
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(19) Comprehensive Income

The Company’s other comprehensive income or loss is summarized as follows for the years ended September 30, 2001,
2000 and 1999:

2001 2000
(In thousands)

s
=]
=]

Unrealized gains(losses) on securities available for sale:
Unrealized holding gains (Iosses) arising during the period $ 3,117 $ 599 $  (,187)

Less: reclassification adjustment for net realized gain

included in net income 889 103 —
Net unrealized gains and losses 2,228 496 (1,187)
Tax effect 859 193 (438)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax $ 1,369 $ 303 $ (729)

@) Parent Company Financial Information
P

Condensed Statements of Financial Condition at September 30, 2001 and 2000 and Condensed Statements of Operations
and Cash Flows for the years ended September 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999 are shown below (in thousands) for Bancshares:

Condensed Statements of Financial Condition

September 30, 2001 and 2000 2001 2000
(In thousands)

Assets:
Cash deposited at Harbor Federal $ 562 $ 4,024
investment securities available for sale at market value 4,939 6,503
Investment in and advances to Harbor Federal 219,843 209,153
Income tax receivable from Harbor Federal —_ 5
Accrued interest receivable 17 50

Total assets $ 225,361 $ 219,735

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity:

Liabilities:

Income tax payable to Harbor Federal ] 85 $ —

Other liabilities 441 351
Total liabilities 526 351

Stockholders’ Equity: 224,835 219,384
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 225,361 $ 219,735
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Condensed Statements of Operations

Years ended September 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999

2001 2000 1999
(In thousands)
Interest on investment securities $ 66 $ 214 $ 238
Total interest income 66 214 238
Gain on sale of securities available for sale 889 103 —
Total other income 889 103 —
Other expense
Management fee to Harbor Federal 175 175 175
Other expenses 310 330 423
Total other expense 485 505 598
Income(loss) before income tax expense (benefit)
and earnings of Harbor Federal 470 (188) (360)
Income tax expense(benefit) 231 (63) (136)
Income(loss) before earnings of Harbor Federal 239 (125) (224)
Equity in net earnings of-Harbor Federal 23,869 21,873 21,443

Net income $§ 24,108 $ 21,748 $ 21,219
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Comndensed Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended September 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999
2601 2000 1999
(In thousands)
Cash used by operating activities:
Net income $ 24,108 $ 21,748 $ 21,219
Adjustments to net income:
Equity in earnings of Harbor Federal (23,869) (21,873) (21,443)
Gain on sale of securities available for sale {889) (103 —
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable 33 11 (GIY)
Decrease in income tax receivable 5 6 23
Increase in income tax payable 8% — —_
(Increase) decrease in other assets —_ 6 ®
Increase in payable to Harbor Federal i75 175 175
Decrease in other liabilities 1 (10) (56)
" Net cash used by operating activities (353 (40) (149
Cash used by investing activities:
Purchase of investment securities available for sale (2,640) (893) (5,805)
Sale of investment securities available for sale 5,330 1,663 —
Net cash provided by (used by) investing activities 2,690 770 (5,805)
Cash provided by financing activities:
Amounts received from Harbor Federal 16,707 35,000 54,000
Dividends paid 8,965) (8,292) (8,089)
Purchase common stock to fund RRP Plan —_ — a,17h
Purchase treasury stock 13,967 (33,342) (35571
Common stock options exercised 426 96 402
Net cash provided by (used by) financing activities ®,799 (6,538) 3,571
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (3,462 (5,808) (2,383)
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 4,024 9,832 12,215
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year $ 562 $ 4,024 $ 9,832
Supplemental disclosures:
Changes in unrealized gain (loss) on securities
available for sale, net of tax $ 1,369 $ 303 $ (729)
Amortization of stock benefit plans 1,996 1,674 2,026
Tax benefit of employee benefit plans 337 188 160
Distribution of RRP shares 838 873 913
ESOP forfeitures transferred to treasury stock — — 44
Treasury stock issued to purchase insurance agency 147 1,087 —
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Corporate Headquarters

Harbor Florida Bancshares, Inc.

Holding Company for:
Harbor Federal Savings Bank
100 South Second Street
Fort Pierce, Florida 34950
(561) 461-2414

Toll-Hree (800) 226-4375

Harbor Federal’s
World Wide Web Site

www.harborfederal.com

General Counsel
Fee, Koblegard & DeRoss
401-A South Indian River Drive
Fort Pierce, Florida 34950

Stock Price Information

Special Counsel
Nixon-Peabody, LLP
401 Ninth Street, NW
Suite 900
Washington, D.C. 20004

Independent Auditors
KPMG LLP
Phillips Point East Tower
Suite 215
777 South Flagler Drive

West Palm Beach, Florida 33401

Stockholder Inquiries
Toni Santiuste
Investor Relations Coordinator
Harbor Federal Savings Bank
P.O. Box 249
Fort Pierce, Florida 34954-0249
Telephone: (561) 460-7002

Harbor Florida Baneshares, Inc.’s common stock is traded on the
NASDAQ National Market under the symbol “HARB”. The common

stock began trading on January 6, 1994.

The following table sets forth the high and low closing sales price

and cash dividends paid per share of common stock for the four

quarters of fiscal years 2001 and 2000.

Fiscal 2001
Fourth Quarter
Third Quarter
Second Quarter
First Quarter

Fiscal 2000
Fourth Quarter
Third Quarter
Second Quarter

First Quarter

Low $

16.56
15.47
14.00
11.63

10.50

9.94
10.06
11.81

High $ Dividends
19.98 1000
19.15 1000
16.38 1000
14.94 0875
12.19 0875
11.31 0875
12.56 0875
13.75 0750

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Stock Transfer Agent

American Stock Transfer
& Trust Company
59 Maiden Lane
New York, New York 10038
Telephone: (800) 937-5449

Annual Report on Form 10K

A copy of Harbor Florida
Bancshares, Inc.’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange
Comrnission, is available without
charge by written or telephone
request as set forth under

Stockholder Inquiries above.

ANNUAL
SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Annual Meeting
Friday, January 25, 2002
10:00 AM
Old City Hall
315 Avenue A
Fort Pierce, Florida. 34950







